Public Document Pack

CYNGOR
Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr Sir Fflint
Chief Officer (Governance) Ay . .
Prif Swyddog (Llywodraethu) Fllntsh"-e

COUNTY COUNCIL
To: CliIr Clive Carver (Chairman)

, _ , CSING

Councillors: Marion Bateman, Peter Curtis,
Andy Dunbobbin, Robin Guest, Ron Hampson, 7 July 2015
Richard Jones, Brian Lloyd, Richard Lloyd,
Vicky Perfect, David Roney, lan Smith, Tracy Waters 01352 702331
Nigel Steele-Mortimer, Carolyn Thomas and tracy.waters@flintshire.gov.uk

Arnold Woolley

Dear Sir / Madam

A meeting of the CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE will be held in the DELYN COMMITTEE ROOM, COUNTY HALL,
MOLD CH7 6NA on MONDAY, 13TH JULY, 2015 at 9.30 AM to consider the
following items.

Members are asked to note the start time of the meeting.

Yours faithfully

e

T

Democracy & Governance Manager

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING
DECLARATIONS)

3 MINUTES (Pages 3 - 14)

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 11 June
2015.

4 MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY (Pages 15 - 34)
Report of Chief Executive




10

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2015/16 (Pages 35 - 42)
Report of Chief Executive

REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING 2014/15 (OUTTURN)
(Pages 43 - 94)

Report of Chief Executive

MANAGEMENT OF THE WORKFORCE CHANGE PROGRAMME (Pages
95 - 110)

Report of Chief Executive

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 111 - 114)
Report of Member Engagement Manager

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 -TO
CONSIDER THE EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

The following item is considered to be exempt by virtue of Paragraph(s) 15 of
Part 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

The public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest
in disclosing the information.

SINGLE STATUS CLOSURE REPORT (Pages 115 - 142)
Report of Chief Executive

The following item is considered to be exempt by virtue of Paragraph(s) 15 of
Part 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

It is not good employment practice or in the public interest for matters the
subject of consultation with employees effected and other unions to be
discussed in public at this stage of the consultation process.

RESTRUCTURE OF ICT SERVICE (Pages 143 - 152)
Report of Chief Officer (Governance)




Agenda ltem 3

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
11 JUNE 2015

Minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny
Committee of the Flintshire County Council held at County Hall, Mold on
Thursday, 11 June 2015

PRESENT: Councillor Clive Carver (Chair)

Councillors: Marion Bateman, Peter Curtis, Andy Dunbobbin, Robin Guest,
Ron Hampson, Richard Jones, Richard Lloyd, Vicky Perfect, David Roney,
Nigel Steele-Mortimer, Carolyn Thomas and Arnold Woolley

SUBSTITUTION:
Councillor Mike Lowe for lan Smith

APOLOGY:
Councillor Brian Lloyd

CONTRIBUTORS:

Leader of the Council & Cabinet Member for Finance, Chief Executive, Chief
Officer (Governance), Chief Officer (Community & Enterprise), Corporate
Finance Manager, Customer Services Manager and Performance Team
Leader

IN ATTENDANCE:
Member Engagement Manager and Committee Officer

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING
DECLARATIONS)

No declarations of interest were made.
MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 14 May 2015 had
been circulated to Members with the agenda.

RESOLVED:

That the minutes be approved as a correct record and signed by the
Chairman.

Prior to the introduction of the Improvement Plan 2015/16 report, the
Leader of the Council & Cabinet Member for Finance and the Chief Executive
congratulated Councillor Clive Carver on his appointment as Chair of the
Committee.

Page 3



10.

IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2015/16

The Leader of the Council & Cabinet Member for Finance introduced
the report and explained that adoption and publication of an Improvement
Plan was a statutory requirement under the 2009 Local Government Measure.

The Plan would allow the Council to concentrate on areas that needed
attention and the current priorities and sub-priorities of the Plan had been
reviewed and some areas that had been completed in 2014/15 had been
removed from the 2015/16 Plan. The key priorities had been broadened and
the specific reference to the Deeside area had been removed from the sub-
priority in relation to business sector growth so this now covered the whole of
the County. The Leader commented on the Deeside Enterprise Zone and
referred to the Vibrant and Viable Places programme. Flintshire Business
Week had recently been launched and the Leader spoke of the small and
medium sized businesses that were engaging and taking part in the initiative.
The continuation of the Welsh Housing Quality Standard work would provide
significant opportunities for the Council to engage with the Housing Business
Sector. A Member workshop had been held on 29 May 2015 where the
working draft documents had been considered along with the proposed
targets and classifications for the statutory national performance indicators.
The Plan was to be considered at a Special Cabinet meeting on 23 June 2015
followed by a County Council meeting in the afternoon.

The Chief Executive detailed the three documents in the report and
explained that appendix 3 was a summary of the key issues from and
responses to the consultations with Members at the workshop held on 29 May
2015. In highlighting the budget, he said that it was important to look at future
years revenue funding and capital programme alongside the priorities set out
in the plan. The Plan could be changed during the year.

In referring to appendix 3, the Performance Team Leader explained
that the document included responses provided at the workshop or
subsequently following the workshop. General issues were reported first
followed by issues raised on individual areas or sub-priorities and then on
specific performance measures. The Performance Team Leader advised that
all of the amendments that had been requested at the workshop had been
highlighted in blue in the Improvement Plan 2015/16 document.

The Chair commented on the issue of broadband speeds and referred
in particular to the fibreoptic link that had been laid by Welsh Government in
2010 near to Hawarden Business Park. In response, the Chief Executive
spoke of meetings with British Telecom (BT) and the Deeside Enterprise Zone
Board about issues including ‘notspots’ and added that improvements had
been made to broadband infrastructures at Hawarden Business Park as a
result. He advised that he would obtain an update on the concerns raised
particularly about ‘notspots’ and suggested that BT be invited to attend a
future meeting of the Committee.

Page 4



Councillor Richard Jones referred to the section on Economy and
Enterprise and indicated that he had stated at the workshop that the priority in
the original document concentrated on the area of Deeside and Deeside
Enterprise Zone in particular. These references had been amended but the
document was not highlighted in blue as had been advised by the
Performance Team Leader. He also referred to the wording on the first bullet
point under ‘Risks to manage’ and queried why the wording had been
changed. The Performance Team Leader advised that this had been
changed following discussions with the Enterprise Manager and she provided
details of the other minor changes that had been made following the
workshop. Councillor Jones felt that references to Deeside and the Deeside
Enterprise Zone were still included throughout the document and therefore
disagreed with the opening remarks of the Leader that all references had
been removed. In response, the Leader concurred that the local economy
growth should benefit the whole of the county and not specifically Deeside
and the Deeside Enterprise Zone. The Chief Executive reiterated earlier
comments about the broadband infrastructure for Hawarden and the Deeside
Enterprise Zone, which was a prime business location of national significance.

Councillor Jones referred to the importance of the Improvement Plan
document and of the development of the Medium Term Financial Plan
alongside it. He felt that if one location was referenced then any revenue
would also be restricted to that area.

Councillor Jones raised a general concern at some of the sub-priorities
that had either been changed or removed since the 2014/15 Plan. It was
confirmed that in most instances this was because they were now business as
usual.

Councillor Jones highlighted the sub-priority of Appropriate and
Affordable Homes and in particular the achievement measure on the number
of households where the Council had discharged its full statutory duty into
private rented accommodation. In response, the Chief Officer (Community &
Enterprise) spoke of the new Housing Act for Wales which had come into
effect in April 2015 and explained that the Council could now discharge the
duty for homeless households to the private rental sector. Work was ongoing
with private landlords and an Environment Health Officer would ensure that
the properties in the private rental sector were at the appropriate level. She
explained that the measure was new and therefore did not have any current
target but added that a baseline would be established for 2015/16 to allow a
target to be set for 2016/17.

On the issue of homelessness Councillor Jones queried how the target
of 90% for 2015/16 would be achieved for measure HHA/013 (homeless
prevention) when it had not been met in preceding years. The Chief Officer
(Community & Enterprise) commented that there was now a requirement to
work with those who were threatened with homelessness within 56 days
rather than 28 days which was the previous requirement. Officers were being
more proactive and it was therefore anticipated that more potential
homelessness could be prevented and that the target was realistic and could

Page 5



be achieved. Flintshire had been awarded some transition funding from
Welsh Government to support the implementation of the new legislation which
made the prevention of homelessness a statutory duty.

On the measure on Disabled Facilities Grants, Councillor Jones
suggested that an explanation should be included about the issue of
resources.

In response to a query from the Chair, Councillor Jones explained that
a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) would be a replacement for Section
106 Agreements on planning applications. He also raised a concern that the
CIL was being challenged by developers and may not provide any benefit but
may also limit funding available for any one project.

The Leader of the Council hoped it was recognised that Deeside was
one of only six areas that was part of the ‘Vibrant and Viable Places’ project
and the delivery of the programme was at a critical stage. He felt that it was
relevant to include this as a sub-priority to ensure that the scheme was on
track as it would be scrutinised carefully by Welsh Government.

Councillor Jones also highlighted the Flint regeneration programme
and in referring to the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP), said that it was
important that rural areas were not forgotten and were protected. He felt that
it was unfair that Deeside and Flint were so heavily mentioned in the plan.
The Chief Executive understood the concerns raised by Councillor Jones but
reminded Members that the Council had formally adopted the plans for the
Deeside and Flint regeneration areas. The majority of funding was being
provided from national sources and other partners and could not be used
elsewhere. National support was area specific based on business potential
and indices of deprivation. The Leader added that regeneration of Flint had
been a commitment from the previous Administration.

Councillor Arnold Woolley indicated that the criteria to receive the
funding had been set by Welsh Government and added that it was difficult to
obtain funding for areas that did not qualify. He reminded Members that £5m
had been received for rural development and £10m for improvements to the
Deeside strip.

On the issue of the road infrastructure, Councillor Jones referred to
page 63 and the target for the percentage of roads that were in overall poor
condition. He queried why the target figures were increasing and whether this
meant that the same condition could not be maintained. The Chief Executive
advised that it was impossible to keep the roads in the same condition as the
amount of resources available for road maintenance had been reduced. He
said that it was appropriate that the priority was included in the plan and
spoke of the importance of utilising the funding well in line with the Highways
Asset Management Plan (HAMP). Councillor Jones felt that only targets that
were aspiring to improve should be included in the plan and questioned
whether the measure should be removed. The Performance Team Leader

Page 6



suggested that a sentence be included reflecting that whilst the targets had
reduced due to funding reductions these were still ambitious targets.

The Chief Executive advised that if officers present at this meeting
could not fully answer the questions asked by Members, then a response
would be provided in writing following the meeting. It was agreed that
Councillor Jones would forward any additional questions on to the Chief
Executive and the Performance Team Leader.

Councillor Carolyn Thomas welcomed the inclusion of tourism in the
Improvement Plan and she highlighted rural areas and the provision of
funding through the Rural Development Plan. She raised concern that rural
areas were being forgotten and suggested that the priority should be stronger
and should include the identification of alternative funding streams. Councillor
Thomas and Councillor Marion Bateman welcomed the earlier suggestion for
BT to attend a future meeting of the Committee. The Leader also indicated
that WG officials had been made aware of the issues raised to do with
broadband and suggested that they also be invited to attend the meeting. The
Chief Executive felt that it would be appropriate to hold an all Member
workshop rather than a formal meeting and this was welcomed.

Councillor Marion Bateman concurred with the comments of Councillor
Woolley and said that she felt that the rest of the county would benefit from
the funding received for the areas of Flint and Deeside. In referring to page
15, she queried whether the development of extra care provision in Holywell
would still be included in the Improvement Plan as the application for planning
permission had been refused at a recent meeting of the Planning and
Development Control Committee. The Chief Executive confirmed that extra
care was still a priority but reminded Members that national grant funding for
the scheme was no longer available. However, he added that Flint extra care
scheme had been self-funded which should be welcomed as there were very
few examples of self-funding such schemes in Wales.

Councillor Andy Dunbobbin requested that the Council’s commitment to
the Armed Forces Community Covenant should be specifically mentioned in
the plan. Councillor Peter Curtis commented on the extra care scheme in
Holywell and also on the issue of tourism in the area being a significant
feature in the future. He spoke of the emphasis on the development of the
Deeside area and felt that the funding being put into the Deeside Enterprise
Zone would benefit the whole of the county.

In response to a query from Councillor Nigel Steele-Mortimer, the Chief
Executive suggested that older drivers would be those over the age of 75, as
defined by the Driver and Vehicle Licensing Agency (DVLA) and that he was
not aware of the criteria for taking part in the driving assessment.

On the issue of Deeside, Councillor Robin Guest agreed with the
comments made, but because of the close location of the Deeside Enterprise
Zone to the Wirral and Chester, he disagreed that there would be an
economic benefit to the whole of Flintshire. He felt that this could mean that

Page 7



11.

some rural areas would struggle to survive and commented that even though
Mold was currently a thriving town, it could not be guaranteed that this would
continue. He also felt that it could not be assumed that all successful
businesses that were located in areas such as Holywell, Buckley and Saltney
would continue to survive because the Deeside regeneration was successful.

The Chair referred to the costs of occupied office accommodation and
queried whether the Council would benefit from reduced business rates if
some offices were unoccupied. The Chief Executive confirmed that the
Authority would not qualify for reduced rates and added that all
accommodation was being reviewed to support more agile working and to
encourage open plan office areas as these were more cost effective. Once
part or all of a building was vacated, non-domestic rates would still need to be
paid by the authority. In response to a query from the Chair about whether
the Council would discuss a reduction in business rates for County Hall and
the Unilever building in Ewloe, the Chief Executive advised that the issue
would be raised with the Rateable Value Agency. The Leader of the Council
advised that the Council’s assets fell in the remit of the Organisational Change
Overview & Scrutiny Committee and added that this was an issue that could
be explored by that Committee.

Councillor Richard Lloyd welcomed the 0% commercial vacancy rate in
Saltney and sought assurance that investment in Saltney would continue.
The Chief Executive commented on the work that had been undertaken for a
pharmacy within the Morrison’s store in Saltney.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the Improvement Plan be received with the following
observations:-

(i) that the rural areas of the County should receive more of an
emphasis

(ii) that the Council’s commitment to the Armed Forces Community
Covenant should be specifically mentioned

(b)  That due to the importance of the superfast broadband roll out to the
development of the local economy, that BT and Welsh Government
representatives be invited to give a presentation at an all Member
workshop to be held for that purpose.

(c) That further information and interpretation on the changes made to the
Improvement Plan be provided to Members to allow further responses
before final approval by Cabinet and Council on 23 June 2015.

YEAR END IMPROVEMENT PLAN MONITORING REPORTS

The Chief Executive introduced a report to consider elements of the
2014/15 Year End Improvement Plan Monitoring Report relevant to the
Committee.

Page 8



The reports highlighted a number of areas where the measure was not
achieved and the Chief Executive explained that these areas were still
included in the new plan for 2015/16 to enable the Committee to continue
monitoring them.

Councillor Robin Guest queried whether comparisons were made with
other local Authorities on areas such as customer feedback about visits to the
Council’'s website. In referring to the figures, he felt that they were
disappointing and asked whether benchmarking with other authorities was
undertaken. The Chief Executive explained that digital access such as the
website was assessed by the Society of IT Management (SOCITM) and
Flintshire County Council had progressed in the last year on the issue of wider
customer access. The Chief Officer (Community & Enterprise) said that more
work was required on the website about self-serve and navigation and details
of benchmarking indicators would also be submitted to the Committee. On
the issue of functionality and design, the Chief Officer (Governance) advised
that SOCITM had awarded two out of four stars to the Council and added that
many other authorities had only been awarded one star. However, on content
SOCITM had advised that there was a need for improvement; this work was
being undertaken.

Councillor Richard Jones felt that more could have been done on
developing a longer term financial plan and that the progress was
disappointing. He also asked why the measure was not included in the
Improvement Plan for 2015/16. He queried how long term planning could be
achieved when there was such uncertainty about the level of revenue support
grant to be received from Welsh Government in 2015/16 and beyond. In
response, the Chief Executive confirmed that the Medium Term Financial
Strategy (MTFS) was in the 2015/16 Improvement Plan and confirmed that a
report was to be considered at Cabinet on 16 June 2015 and would be
submitted to the meeting of this Committee scheduled for 9 July 2015. He
added that there was uncertainty about funding levels but explained that
budgets would be based on historic patterns of the amount of revenue support
grant received. The Leader of the Council & Cabinet Member for Finance
confirmed that further discussions would be undertaken on the MTFS and
added that every opportunity had been taken to raise the concerns about lack
of predictions from WG about levels of funding. However, he added that there
were many areas of pressure that a level of certainty could be given on. In
referring to the £527m of funding allocated to Health Services, Councillor
Richard Jones said that it was important to ensure that monies were allocated
appropriately. The Leader of the Council & Cabinet Member for Finance
referred to the budget that was to take place on 8 July 2015 and advised that
it was anticipated that there would be more reductions in funding for local
authorities over the coming months.

RESOLVED:

That the Committee’s comments be commended to the Policy & Performance
Team.

Page 9



12.

13.

YEAR END CHIEF OFFICER PERFORMANCE REPORTS

The Chief Executive introduced a report to consider the 2014/15 Year
End Service Performance Reports produced at Chief Officer level for their
respective portfolios.

He explained that the report contained historic data and areas of
concern had been highlighted.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the Committee acknowledges that the areas of poor performance
had been highlighted within the reports; and

(b) That the Committee’s comments be commended to the Policy &
Performance Team.

CUSTOMER SERVICES AND CALL HANDLING UPDATE

The Chief Officer (Community & Enterprise) introduced a report to
update Members on the progress made towards the changes to the way
telephone calls were received via 01352 752121 (Switchboard).

She detailed the background to the report and explained that Contact
Centre telephony software had been introduced to the main switchboard on
22 April 2015. The current switchboard service would cease on 31 August
2015. The Chief Officer suggested an amended recommendation which
would be to seek Member assurance about the proposals. It was reported
that approximately 10% of calls to Switchboard were internal and it was the
intention to make it easier for staff to be able to identify the number they
required themselves. Reassurance was provided that the Switchboard
service would not end from September 2015 as callers who had chosen
option 4 and were currently directed to the Switchboard, would instead be
directed to the existing contact centres in Streetscene, Housing and
Revenues & Benefits. An option would also be included for callers to input the
extension number of the person they wanted to contact if they knew it. The
Chief Officer also advised that the Reception Area would not be closing and
that work was ongoing to establish whether some or all of the current
reception areas could be consolidated.

Councillor Ron Hampson referred to the excellent service provided by
the Switchboard Team. He raised concern that option 4 would no longer be
available and was assured by the Chief Officer that these calls would be
directed to the existing call centres rather than to the Switchboard. On the
issue of agile working, Councillor Marion Bateman queried whether it was
possible for Members to be provided with a list of mobile telephone numbers
for officers. The Chief Executive indicated that officers who had a Council
owned mobile telephone should be including all methods of contact on their
correspondence, such as emails. Councillor Bateman also expressed her
disappointment that answerphones were not being used and that phones

Page 10



sometimes were left to ring out. The Chief Officer advised that work was
underway to roll out advice to all staff about the use of voicemail/mobiles.
She added that it was important that all telephones were answered in front
facing teams and asked that Members let her know of any problems that they
experienced with phones not being answered.

Councillor Richard Jones concurred that it would be useful for
Members to have a list of contact numbers including mobile phone details and
asked why all services could not be covered by the Contact Centres. In
response, the Chief Officer said that not all services had a contact centre but
considerations were being given to whether the Council should have a single
Contact Centre. She felt that it was not acceptable for phones to go
unanswered or for work mobile number details to not be provided. The
Customer Services Manager advised that a phone directory was available on
the Infonet and that work was ongoing to address the issue of mobile numbers
being made available to Members.

Councillor Robin Guest spoke about extension numbers and felt that it
was important to advise those who phoned that the extension number that
they needed to input was four digits. The Chief Officer indicated that there
was a need to ensure that the technology could deal with this. The Customer
Services Manager responded to a query from the Chair about the switchboard
phone number being different to the direct dial numbers for individual
extensions. Councillor Peter Curtis spoke of his frustration that his calls were
sometimes not returned when he had left a message for officers to call him.

In response to the comments made, the Chief Executive advised that
an update report on Call Handling would be provided to a future meeting of
the Committee.

Councillor Arnold Woolley suggested that an exercise be undertaken to
ensure that all information produced by the Council contained the correct
contact information.

The Chair reiterated the excellent service provided by the Switchboard
and raised concern that once calls were directed to the existing Contact
Centres, the officers who answered would not have the local knowledge that
the current Switchboard Team had.

Following the discussion, the Chief Officer said that a training
programme was to be rolled out for all call handling staff and as the
organisation was reducing in size, it was important that users phoning the
authority knew the correct numbers to call. She reiterated the earlier
suggestion that an update report would be submitted to a future meeting of
the Committee.

The Chair queried why the introduction of the enhanced service to
allow customers to input the extension number if they know it was only being
introduced from 1 September 2015; he asked if this could be finalised sooner.
The Chief Officer confirmed that an earlier introduction could be considered.

Page 11



14.

In response to a query from Councillor Hampson about savings from
the implementation of the proposals, the Chief Officer advised that the savings
for 2015/16 were £100,000 with a further £64,000 in 2016/17.

Councillor Andy Dunbobbin commented on a booklet which the Council
had produced which had contained incorrect contact details and said that
following him contacting the relevant department, the information had been
changed. He raised concern that Members were only raising such issues at
this meeting if they had been aware of them previously.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the Committee has received some assurance with regard to the
development of the call handling arrangements;

(b)  That the officers be asked to monitor the performance risks/concerns
expressed at the meeting;

(c) That it be recommended that the proposed enhancement to the
automated service (immediate dial now for extension numbers) be
introduced as soon as possible; and

(d)  That an update report be submitted to the Committee in due course.

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2014/15 (MONTH 12)

The Corporate Finance Manager introduced a report to provide
Members with the Revenue Budget Monitoring 2014/15 (Month 12)
information for the Council Fund and Housing Revenue Account (HRA) which
was being submitted to Cabinet on 16 June 2015.

For the Council Fund, the projected net in-year expenditure was
reported to be £2.059m lower than the budget and the movements from
Month 10 were summarised in appendix 1. The changes from Month 10
related mainly to adjustments for the single status rebalancing exercise,
property maintenance reallocations and workforce efficiency accounting
adjustments. The overall variance between Month 10 and Month 12 was
£0.343m and included an increase in workforce efficiencies with a positive
variance of £0.546m; the details were shown in paragraph 3.12. The second
main change was the final estimated cost for the closure plan for the
orphaned site at Sandycroft and the Council’s liability for the closure of the
risk was £0.800m. The analysis of Corporate and Functional efficiencies
currently projected that £7.682m (87%) would be achieved resulting in a net
underachievement of £1.158m. Section 4 and appendix 6 detailed the carry
forward requests which were all recommended for approval. Included within
the 2014/15 budget were provisions for non-standard inflation and allocations
for this had been made to departments where there had been an evidenced
need and had resulted in an underspend of £0.240m. The Corporate Finance
Manager advised that there was a reduced risk of significant changes
occurring so previously reported risks had now been removed. However, the

Page 12



15.

final outturn would not be confirmed until the accounts had been finalised and
submitted for audit. Section 7 and appendix 4 provided details of the
unearmarked reserves and indicated that the current projected level of the
contingency reserve at 31 March 2015 was £5.000m.

The HRA was projected to have an overall overspend of £0.069m and
a projected closing balance at month 12 of £1.096m, which at 3.65% of total
expenditure satisfied the prudent approach of ensuring a minimum level of
3%.

Councillor Robin Guest felt that it had been regrettable that reductions
in service provision had been undertaken when they may not have been
required due to the amount of reserves available. In response the Leader &
Cabinet Member for Finance said that he had asked for further work on
efficiencies for future years. He commented on the importance of utilising the
budget to benefit the Council due to reductions in funding that the Authority
would face in the future. One-off efficiencies could not support recurring
efficiencies and the 2015-16 budget had been set on the basis of the recurring
funds available to the Council. The Corporate Finance Manager indicated that
the reserves had accumulated over a number of years and the 2015/16
budget had been agreed based on the issues arising at that time which was at
Month 7. The Chief Executive explained that the contingency reserves were
for in-year issues that could not be predicted. The Council was in a positive
position, which was not the case for a number of other Councils which had a
negative figure. He added that a reserve of £5m was a modest amount when
compared to the overall annual budget of the Council.

In response to a question from the Chair about whether the lItalian
owners of the former Euticals site in Sandycroft would be pursued to recover
any of the costs incurred by the Council, the Chief Executive confirmed that all
attempts would be made to recover the costs but he did not know if this would
be successful. He provided an explanation on the responsibility of the Council
to make the abandoned site safe. Councillor Guest indicated that the grant
funding from Welsh Government of £0.700m and the £0.800m liability for the
Council resulted in a £0.200m shortfall which he queried. The Corporate
Finance Manager advised that this figure had been included as costs in
2013/14.

RESOLVED:
(@)  That the Revenue Budget Monitoring Report (Month 12) be noted; and
(b)  That no recommendations be made to the Cabinet on this occasion.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

The Member Engagement Manager introduced the report to consider
the Forward Work Programme for the Committee.

Page 13



16.

He advised that a Member workshop on the Medium Term Finance
Plan was to be held on 7 July 2015. Following a discussion, it was agreed
that the workshop would commence at 9.30am. The items that were to be
considered at the meetings scheduled for 9 July 2015 and 10 September
2015 were detailed.

During earlier discussions, it had been suggested that a Customer
Services Update Report would be submitted to a future meeting in due
course. An invitation to the Police & Crime Commissioner to attend a meeting
to discuss the Crime and Policing Plan 2016/17 had also been extended but a
response had not yet been received.

Councillor Andy Dunbobbin asked whether a joint meeting with the
Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny from Wrexham County Borough
Council had been scheduled. The Member Engagement Manager indicated
that this was still being pursued.

RESOLVED:

(@)  That the Forward Work Programme, as submitted, be approved; and

(b)  That the Member Engagement Manager, in consultation with the Chair,
Vice-Chair and officers, be authorised to vary the work programme

between meetings.

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS IN ATTENDANCE

There were no members of the public or press in attendance.

(The meeting started at 10.00 am and ended at 12.25 pm)

Page 14



Agenda ltem 4

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE: MONDAY 13 JULY

REPORT BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND CORPORATE FINANCE
MANAGER

SUBJECT: MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To present part one of the latest revision of the Medium Term
Financial Strategy which sets out the financial forecast for the Council
for 2015-2018.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  The Council maintains a financial strategy for the medium term. The
purpose of the strategy is to forecast the resources the Council will
have at its disposal and to guide planning on how best to use them.
The medium term is set as a 3 year interval. The period for the revised
strategy in financial years is 2015/16 to 2017/18. This will take the
Council to the end of the first year of its new electoral cycle with the
next local elections due in May 2017.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01 In drawing a financial picture five principal factors have been taken
into account:-

National cost pressures
Local cost pressures
Inflation

Workforce costs
Income

3.02 Producing an accurate medium term forecast in a period of fiscal
and economic uncertainty is extremely challenging. Whereas
workforce costs can be predicted with some reliability, inflation is
proving to be volatile in areas such as energy and fuel, and there
is no certainty over future levels of the main revenue support
government grant that underpins the Council’s overall funding. In
the period between the Parliamentary elections and the first full
Chancellor’s budget within the new government term, there is even

Page 15



3.03

3.04

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

greater uncertainty over public funding. Therefore, a number of
assumptions have to be made in arriving at a forecast.

A summary of the financial picture for this three year picture is set out
below.This forecast predicts a total funding ‘gap’ of £52.8M for the
three year period. It should be noted that the period includes the
current financial year for which the Council already has an adopted
budget strategy. This first of three year strategies accounts for
identifying £18.3M of the total ‘gap’.

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Total

Expenditure £m £m £m £m
National Pressures 0.9 0.4 0.3 1.6
Local Pressures 6.2 25 1.2 99
Inflation 41 4.1 4.3 12.5
Workforce Pressures 2.5 94 3.7 15.6
Income

Reduction in Revenue 6.6 6.5 6.3 19.4
Support Grant (3.5%)

Council Tax Increase (3%) (2.0) (2.1) (2.1) (6.2)
Projected Gap 18.3 20.8 13.7 52.8

To deal with the projected budget gap Chief Officers and Cabinet
members have been reviewing options for 2016/17-2017/18 drawing
on the developing business plans for each portfolio. This is in addition
to work on options for corporate financing choices. It is these options,
building on the strategies for organisational change and service
reform already being implemented, which will form the second part of
the Medium Term Financial Strategy on solutions to bridging the
funding ‘gap’. Full member engagement on the development of the
second part of the strategy is being planned for the summer months
beginning with an all member workshop on 7 July.

RECOMMENDATIONS

To receive and adopt part one of the revised Medium Term Financial
Strategy and the financial forecasts it makes.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Medium Term Financial Strategy is a significant document which

forecasts the financial picture for the Council.
ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

No direct impacts.

Page 16



7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

No direct impacts.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

No direct impacts.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

No direct impacts.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

The Medium Term Financial Strategy will underpin future
consultations with elected members, the workforce, Trade Unions,
partner organisations and the public on future service choices.

APPENDICES

The Medium Term Financial Strategy part one.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None.
Contact Officer: Sharron Jones

Telephone: 01352 702107
Email: sharron.jones@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Medium Term
Financial Strategy

Sir'y Flint
( Flintshire



Part 1 Medium Term Financial Strategy Forecasting Chapters

INntroduction

The first part of the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) forecasts the resources the
Council is likely to have over the next 3 years.

Our resources are being reduced, year on year, through big reductions in the grants
we depend on from Government. We then also have to meet cost pressures, such as
inflation, with less money at our disposal. Inflation, rises in demand for critical services,
such as social care, and the cost of legal obligations placed on us, such as pensions
reform, all place a strain on our reducing budget.

A summary of the forecasting position for 2015/16 - 2017/18 is set out below.

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18  Total

Expenditure £m £m £m £m
National Pressures 0.9 0.4 0.3 1.6
Local Pressures 6.2 2.5 1.2 9.9
Inflation 4.1 4.1 4.3 12.5
Workforce Pressures 2.5 9.4 3.7 15.6
Income

Reduction in Revenue Support Grant (3.5%) 6.6 6.5 6.3 19.4
Council Tax Increase (3%) (2.0) (2.1) (2.1) (6.2)
Projected Gap 18.3 20.8 13.7 52.8

Part 2 of the MTFS, to be published shortly, will set out the solutions and options for
organisational efficiency, and service changes to work to close this challenging financial

gap.

Page 20



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2015 - 2018

Part 1

Contents

Forecasting for the Future:

1.

2.

3.

National Pressures

L. ocal Pressures

Inflation

. Workforce
. Income

. Total Impacts

Page 21



1. National

Pressures

These are financial pressures which are driven nationally and are beyond the control of

the Council. They may come about from policy directions or new legislation from either

UK Government or Welsh Government, where powers are increasingly devolved. These

pressures are expected to be met by councils without extra funds being set aside by

Government.

Council Tax Reduction Scheme

The Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS) was
introduced in 2013/14 by Welsh Government
to provide financial assistance to help some
residents pay their Council Tax. CTRS replaced
the previous Council Tax benefit system. Welsh
Government funding for the scheme does not
increase year on year and therefore the annual
increase in Council Tax ‘benefits’ payments we
pay out is a pressure on the Council’s budget.
Over the medium term, this will cost the Council
an estimated £0.952m.

Discretionary Housing Payments

Changes to the Government’s Welfare Reform
Programme have had a financial impact on some
households. Discretionary Housing Payments
(DHP) offertemporary support to peopleindifficulty.
Over the last 3 years the Council has ‘topped up’
the DHP funds provided by Welsh Government
to help the most vulnerable. In 2014/15 this cost
the Council £0.053m. In 2015/16 there will be a
reduction of £0.067m in the amount of funding
the Council receives for DHP. The Council will be
under pressure to make up any difference.

Impacts of Legislation and Case Law

New legislation such as the Social Services Bill,
and Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards Case Law
(DoLS), can affect the way services are to be
provided and people’s rights. Councils have to
manage the financial impact of changes in the
law as part of their budget often without any
additional support from Government. Within the
2015/16 budget a pressure of £0.290m has had
to be met for DolLS.

Independent Living Fund

The Independent Living Fund (ILF) provides
financial support to disabled people with
significant care needs to help them live
independently at home or in the community.
The UK Government announced that the fund
will close from June 2015 with the responsibility
for financial support to be transferred to local
authorities. The cost pressure for Flintshire
County Council is estimated to be £0.338m in
2015/16 with an additonal pressure of £0.112m
in 2016/17. Welsh Government have recently
said that there may be some financial support
to help Councils with the transition. At this stage
we do not know what help we will receive, if any.

Reductions in Specific Grants

The Council relies on numerous specific grants
which the Welsh Government allocate to directly
fund services such as Education and Waste
Management.

In recent financial years there have been some big
reductions in these grants. The Council sometimes
has to make up the difference for services to

ge zzontinue.



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2015 - 2018

Specific Non Workforce National Pressures Identified in Budget/MTFS

£m
3.00
2.50
2.00
1.50
1.00
0.50 2015/16
0 ]
CTRS DOLS ILF - 2016/17
2017/18
The risks to services from reductions in specific The total impact of just the grant reductions shown
grants include: above comes to £2.7m. Future grant reductions
« Sustainable Waste Management Grant - are unconfirmed at this stage and subject to
. . . . change.
previous reductions in this grant had created
a cumulative cost pressure of £0.308m by
2014/15. A further reduction in the grant for Workforce Costs
2015/16 has been confirmed at £0.100m giving There are significant new workforce costs from
a total reduction to date of £0.408m. national changes to Local Government and
Teacher Pensions Schemes. These are covered in
¢ Supporting People Grant - there has been a Section 4 - Workforce.
sustained reduction in this grant since 2009/10
of £1.6m.

e Education Improvement Grant - Big changes
to the education grant system from April 2015
have resulted in 11 grants being amalgamated
into a single grant called Education Improvement
Grant. The effect of these changesin 2015/16 is
areduction 0f9.85% or £0.509m. From 2016/17
Welsh Government are planning to introduce
a funding formula for this grant. The impacts
of this next phase of change are unknown.

e Post 16 Education Grant - This grant was
reduced in 2015/16 by 2.5% or £0.149m.
Intelligence from Welsh Government suggests
a further 5% cut in 2016/17.

The total impact of known national pressures is £1.6m

Page 23

5



Part 1 Medium Term Financial Strategy Forecasting Chapters

2. Local

Pressures

Local pressures come about from demands for services and other local circumstances.
They are not funded by Government grant with the cost falling on the Council.

Current Local Pressures

Social Services:
Transition to Adulthood

Each year a number of clients are expected to
have ongoing social care needs as they transfer
from children’s services and become adults. The
cost of care packages for each client is based on
a careful assessment of their future care needs. In
2015/16 and 2016/17 the number of young clients
transferring to Adult Social Care will be 16 and 14
respectively. This has led to a budget pressure of
£1.239m in 2015/16, £0.923m in 2016/17 and
£0.640m in 2017/18. We have a duty to meet their
needs.

Extra Care

There will be annual revenue costs from the running
of the new Extra Care Scheme in Flint which will
become operational in 2017.

School Modernisation

This pressure is an estimate of the service ‘exit’
costs of teaching and other employees leaving our
service as we change school provision and open
the new Post 16 hub at Coleg Cambria, Deeside.

elopncmT .I ‘
8 ﬁ & ﬂ Teamwovk < L%

N->T1=-0O -0

74
Amlqss Mm/\MO‘eMevd' . \o

Landfill Tax

An increase in the rate per tonne we pay to take
waste to landfill is an additional pressure. There
is a statutory requirement to dispose of our
waste. The Council is diverting as much waste as
possible from landfill through increasing recycling
and other forms of disposal.

Making Workforce Efficiencies

As part of the budget for 2015/16, a pressure
was included to cover our changing savings
targets for reducing the workforce set as part of
the 2014/15 budget. Future workforce efficiencies
are now being built into our business planning
process. There are also cost pressures through
releasing employees through redundancy and
early retirement.,

Prudential Borrowing

The Council has built up borrowing over the years
to fund capital schemes. A review of our Central
Loans and Investment Account will reprofile
our borrowing. This ongoing review may create
efficiencies or pressures. The Council is planning
to increase its borrowing to pay for new capital
schemes such as improving school buildings.

Internal Insurance Fund

The Council provides insurance cover for the
risks it faces through a combination of purchased
external insurance and self-insurance through
our internal insurance fund. The adequacy of the
internal fund has been assessed by our insurance
brokers. There is a need to increase the funds to
meet our risks.



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2015 - 2018

Specific non Workforce Local Pressures Identified in Budget/MTFS

£m
3.00

2.50

2.00

1.50

1.00

0.50

[l Transition to Adulthood
M Insurance
B Rental Income
Il School Modernisation
M Landfill Tax
Prudential Borrowing
B Extra Care Revenue
[ Unachieved Workforce
efficiency
ICT Licences &
Maintenance

I_..__I_;

2015/16 2016/17

Information Technology

Thereisanew recurring pressure from our Microsoft
Enterprise Licence agreement at an annual cost
of £0.350m per annum from 2016/17. A further
emerging pressure for software maintenance is
for the iTrent (Human Resources) system from
2016/17.

Workforce Costs

There are significant new workforce costs from the
introduction of the Local Single Status Agreement
and the actuarial review of the Clwyd Pension
Fund. These are covered in Section 4 - Workforce.

Emerging Local Pressures

Municipal Mutual Insurance

Municipal Mutual Insurance (MMI) was the main
insurer of the public sector prior to it closing its
insurance business in 1992. A scheme is in place
for any liabilities still outstanding from historic
insurance with MMI. Any increase in claims arising
from that period could impact on the levy to be
paid by the Council.

2017/18

*Figure updated from budget report.

Contaminated Land Strategy

The Council has a responsibility to ensure there is
no public risk from former landfill sites. There is a
need for the Council to assess if there is any need
for remedial work on these sites.

Waste Management

The Council is exposed to risks including
fluctuations in recycling income from sales of
waste recyclates in the open market.

Economy

The Council is exposed to the risk of decreases
in the income it relies on from fees and charges
in services such as leisure and planning. These
fluctuations can depend on the health of the
economy.

Specific Grant Reductions

Late notification of specific grant allocations
by Welsh Government make financial planning
challenging. Recent grant reductions in 2015/16
include the Free Swim Initiative (£0.025m) and
Flood Water Management Act Grant (£0.050m).

The total impact of major local pressures is £9.9m

Page 25

7



Part 1 Medium Term Financial Strategy Forecasting Chapters

3. Inflation

Inflation is the rate at which the prices for goods and services are expected to rise.

The inflation costs a council has to meet are not the same as those that households face.
Even at times of low Retail Price Index (RPI) inflation councils can have big inflationary
pressures. Flintshire County Council builds Inflation into its annual budgets based on

the latest market intelligence. Overall, income budgets include a 3% increase to meet
inflation. This is based on recent trends in inflation. Within the annual funding ‘settlement’
the Council receives from Welsh Government no provision is made for inflation. This means
that the Council has to find a way of meeting the costs of annual inflation from within its

reducing resources.

Types of Inflation
Pay

Provision for nationally agreed pay awards is
based on the latest information from our national
negotiating bodies. Over the last three years pay
inflation has been assumed at 1%, and included
in the budget at this level until confirmation of
each annual agreements has been received.

mwv -

Prices

The current forecast for price inflation includes
a 2% increase over all expenditure budgets,
apart from what we call Non Standard Inflation.
Budgets which are not exposed to normal price
inflation, such as Benefits, are excluded.

Over the last three years, budget holding service
managers have had to absorb price inflation
within their budgets, without any increase. Extra
provision has only been made where there is an
exceptional case. In 2015/16 this extra provision
totalled £0.421m for exceptions such as increases
in care fees where we commission residential care
home places.

Non Standard Inflation

Non Standard Inflation (NSI) provision is set aside
to support services which are exposed to higher
than normal annual inflationary pressures in buying
fuel, energy and food supplies.

In recent years these rates of inflation have been
volatile, for example, in the energy sector due to
rising oil prices. More provision for inflation has
been made in these areas in the last two financial



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2015 - 2018

Graph 1.
Historical Budgeted Inflation

Inflation figures
in£m
8 —

7_

6_

Total

| TR

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 J

2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

years, (energy at 8%, fuel at 11.2% and food at
5.8%).

As part of the 2015/16 budget strategy the need to
set aside any provision for Non Standard Inflation
(NSI) was reviewed. Specific market intelligence
on energy (from Crown Commercial Services,
UES Energy) shows that overall prices for gas
and electricity were predicted to stay stable in
2015/16.

Market intelligence within the food markets (from
Tuco Ltd, Procurement Partner) shows that some
food groups may be subject to an increase of
between 0.5% and 3%. Inflation on food was
considered to be the area of greatest risk in
2015/16. Therefore an allocation of £0.064m was
held within the budget.

The inflation risks and costs of energy, fuel and
food are subject to many economic and other
factors beyond our control. Market intelligence

Graph 2.
Forecast within MTFS

Inflation figures
in £m
8 —

7_

6_

. —

Total

2_

1 1 1
2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

*Includes Schools for forecasting purposes
*Rates of inflation are subject to review and consideration
of Market Intelligence as part of next phase

will be used with quarterly updates to help make
this as accurate a forecast as possible.

Inflation on Income

In recent years income budgets have included a
3% increase to reflect the need to raise prices in
line with costs. See Section 5 - Income.

The total amount of inflation forecast is £12.5m

Page 27

9



4, \Worktorce

By far the biggest cost of managing a Council of our size is the cost of employing our
workforce. Flintshire both employs people to provide services direct to communities and
to customers, and commissions or contracts out other services. Where we commission
or contract the Council is not the employer. We also employ people to provide essential
internal support services such as Finance and Human Resources.

The costs of employing our workforce are rising due to a combination of national and
local pressures including annual pay rises, pensions reform, and the Single Status

Agreement.

Flintshire employs around 7,140 people in 8,206
roles. The total annual ‘wage bill’ in 2014/15 was in
the region of £178m. The ‘wage bill’ is made up of
salaries, employer pension contributions, employer
national insurance contributions, and allowances
and expenses.

The costs of employing people are rising. The costs
pressures can be grouped as:-

‘cost of living’ pay rises
low pay protection costs
local pay settlements
pensions

‘Costs of Living’ Pay Rises

Workers expect to receive an annual pay rise for
their earnings to keep pace with inflation. These are
commonly known as ‘cost of living’ pay awards and
are negotiated nationally between representatives of
the local government employers and the trade unions.

~age 2

Following a period of imposed pay ‘freezes’, annual
pay awards are again being granted by agreement.
Annual pay awards are running at between 1-2% for
most local government workers.

The cumulative impact of national pay awards for
2015/16-2017/18 is shown in Table 1.

Table 1 - Impact of Pay Awards

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Total
£m £m £m £m
1.804 1.690 1.707 5.201

Low Pay Protection Costs

Workers are protected from being low paid through the
setting of a national minimum wage. The lowest levels of
pay in local government are above the national minimum
wage. The minimum wage is £6.50 per hour rising to
£6.70 per hour on 1 October 2015. Flintshire’s lowest
hourly pay rate is currently £7.189 per hour. Whilst there
are no immediate pay pressures here for the Council as
it meets its legal obligations, this might change over time.

There is pressure for Trade Unions, some political parties
and lobby groups for employers to adopt the Living
Wage. The Living Wage is argued to be a more realistic
amount for people to live on and is set at a higher rate
than the Minimum Wage at £6.50 per hour. Whilst
Flintshire has gone some way to preventing low pay and
has implemented a pay structure where the lowest pay
grade ‘tops out’ near to the Living Wage, we have not
as an employer set it as a minimum. If we were to do so
this would present a new cost pressure. Approximately
1,297 employees (including relief workers) are currently
gaid beneath the Living Wage.



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2015 - 2018

Local Pay Settlements

Local authorities have obligations to ensure that they pay
all employees fairly with equality of treatment for women
and men. These obligations come from important
national agreements and the equal pay legislation.
Reviewing local pay arrangements to ensure that there
is equality of treatment is a complex and time-consuming
exercise. Like many other local authorities Flintshire has
now reached a Single Status Agreement to achieve this.
Under our Agreement we have introduced a new pay and
grading model. Single Status Agreements have in every
single case around the country added cost to the ‘wage
bill’. Whilst some employees will gain on pay, some will
stay the same, and some will lose on pay, a significant
majority will have to gain or stay the same to successfully
achieve agreement through negotiations between
employer and trade unions and then through a workforce
ballot. Therefore, there will be a total increase in pay costs
across the board under these types of Agreements.

Some years ago the Welsh Government made extra
provision in the base financial settlement for local
government to support the costs of introducing Single
Status Agreements in the knowledge that they would
inflate workforce costs. Whilst providing this support was
a visionary step towards ending unequal pay between
women and men, the provision set aside was not enough
to meet the inflationary impact in full. Councils have
to make up the shortfall themselves.

Flintshire’s Single Status Agreement was introduced
in 2014. The inflationary impacts for the first two years
have been ‘buffered’ or cancelled out through the use
of financial reserves. The agreement will impact on the
budget from June 2016. The annual cost of the wage bill
will rise for several years as some employees who have
entered a new pay grade work their way up through the
annual pay increments until they reach the top of their
grade. At this point the wage bill will ‘peak’.

The impacts of the Single Status Agreement are shown
in table 2 below. The impacts shown are net of the annual

Table 2 - Single Status Impact

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Total
fm £m £m £m
0.000 3.774 1.726 5.500

- i

provision with the national financial settlement of £4.3m.
The forecasted impacts reported to Council in October
2013, when adopting the Single Status Agreement,
were greater; they have been significantly reduced
through the ongoing programme of reducing the scale
of the workforce through voluntary redundancies and
retirements.

Local Government Pension Scheme

Local government employees (other than teachers,
police and firefighters) are entitled to be members of the
local government pension scheme. The pension scheme
is a funded one where both employers and employees
contribute to the costs of building their ‘pension pot’ for
their eventual retirement. The monies are invested into the
Clwyd Pension Fund for capital gain and income to pay
pension liabilities both now and into the future.

Public service pension schemes are being reformed to
help financial sustainability. For the local government
pension scheme the new CARE (Career Average)
scheme replaced the final salary scheme from 1st April
2014. At a national level the Government have reviewed
how the pension provision is shared more fairly between
employees and scheme employers, if costs continue
to increase. This may result in a change to employee
contributions or scheme benefits in the future.

The employer contribution for the Council is set by
the Fund Actuary every three years. The last actuarial
valuation date was 31 March 2013 which provided both
future service cost contributions and deficit payments for

/15, 2015/16 and 2016/17. The future Flintshire rate
Page 2



Part 1 Medium Term Financial Strategy Forecasting Chapters

is a percentage of pensionable pay and will
vary. At the last actuarial valuation the employer
contribution rate was set as 12.2% (2014/15),
13.2% (2015/16) and 13.9% (2016/17),

At the last Actuarial Valuation the Council had
a pension deficit of £197m. The Council has a
deficit recovery plan of 19 years and the agreed
payments are £9.185m (2014/15), £9.490m
(2015/16) and £9.985m (2016/17).

The pension contributions to be made to the
Clwyd Pension Fund by Flintshire as an employer
were in the region of £10.2m.

For the third and final year of this MTFS it is more
difficult to estimate pension costs. Despite strong
asset returns on investments of +16% in 2014/15,
the funding level of the Fund has fallen by 5%.
The Council’s deficit has therefore increased. This
is due to lower than estimated long term interest
rates. The Actuary of the Clwyd Pension Fund
will undertake a funding review this year which
may assist all employers in the Fund with their
future financial plans, ahead of the next Actuarial
Valuation.

Pensions Performance: the most recent actuarial
review in 2013/14 reset employer contributions
for the period 2014/15 - 2016/17. The inflationary
impacts are shown in table 3 below.

Pensions Reform: a number of recent pensions
reforms are causing inflationary pressure. Under
a change called the Single Pension Scheme local
government pension schemes will no longer qualify

for a rebate for national insurance contributions
made towards the additional State Pension known
as the Second Pension. This change will increase
National Insurance employer contributions by
3.4% from April 2016. The inflationary impacts
are shown in table 3 below. Employee national
insurance contributions will also increase.

Under a change called Automatic Enrolment,
access to pension provision in a qualifying pension
scheme had to be made available to all new
employees from 1 October 2012. For all existing
employees who had previously deferred entry or
opted out of the Clwyd Pension Fund, a transitional
period to October 2017 applies. At this time, any
remaining employees would be automatically
enrolled into the Clwyd Pension Fund. This will be
at a cost to the Council. It is not expected that all
employees with deferred Fund entry will choose to
stay in the Pension Fund at 2017, but a proportion
will. The predicted inflationary impacts are also
shown in table 3 below.

Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Teachers’ Pension Scheme is a central
government controlled Public Service Pension
Scheme that, unlike the LGPS, is unfunded. The
contributions are set by Central Government.
Under pensions reform the employer contributions
for teachers’ pensions are to be increased from
2016. The inflationary impacts are also shown in
table 3 below.

Table 3 - Pension Related Incremental Impacts

Pressure 2015/16
£m
Actuarial Review 1.747
Single Pension Scheme 0
Auto Enrolment 0
Teachers’ Pension Increase 0
Total 1.747

2016/17 2017/18 Total
£m £m £m
1.504 1.300 4.551
2.787 0 2.787
0 0.625 0.625
1.364 0 1.364
5.655 1.925 9.327

The total amount of workforce pressures is £15.6m (excluding inflation)

Page 30



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2015 - 2018

5. Income

The Council is funded from two main sources - the Revenue Support Grant and Council
Tax. The Revenue Support Grant (RSG) awarded by Welsh Government makes up 65%
of the total income of the Council with Council Tax contributing 22%. The remainder

is made up from specific government grants and income from fees and charges.

RSG is reducing year on year. UK Government fiscal plans show a continuation of
reductions in the medium term. Setting Council Tax is a continual challenge in the
current financial situation. Other income generating opportunities can be constrained
by Welsh Government controls and economic factors. It can be difficult to balance
increased charges to recover costs, with affordability and collectability from clients and

customers.

Revenue Support Grant (RSG)

The Council received a reductioninits RSG of 3.4%
in 2015/16 equal to £6.6m. Welsh Government
has not given any firm indication of the level of RSG
funding for future years. Continuing reductions are
expected and we are assuming reductions in RSG
of 3.5% per year for the next two years in this
strategy.

Over the medium term of this forecast this could
mean a total £19.4m reduction in RSG funding.

Chapter 1 - National Pressures highlights the
significant reductions in specific grants which
are added to the reduction in RSG in arriving at a
complete forecast for this 3 year period.

Council Tax and Business Rates

The Council collects the Council Tax from local
residents and the ‘Business Rates’ from local
businesses.

The level of Council Tax is set annually and is paid
by local residents to help finance the Council’'s
overall budget (£60m in 2015/16).

The Council collects the local ‘business rates’ on
behalf of Welsh Government. This is then paid into
a national pool and redistributed to councils as
part of the annual financial settlement. Flintshire’s
share of this pool in 2015/16 will be around £63m.

As part of the budget for 2015/16 the Council
agreed to set the increase on Council Tax at
3.75%. This is at a higher level than the 3% set in
previous budget years. This extra rise was needed
due to the challenging financial position faced by
the Council as set out in this strategy.

The level of Council Tax for future years will be
a democratic decision of the Council. For the
purposes of this plan an annual increase of 3%
has been built in for 2016/17 and for 2017/18.
This would provide an additional £2.1m of income
per year. In setting the Council Tax the Council has
to balance the financial needs of the organisation
to maintain its services with the affordability of
Council Tax for local residents.

Page 31

13



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2015 - 2018

Fees and Charges

In 2014/15 the Council generated £25m from
fees and charges. The Council is developing
a more wide ranging Income Strategy to help
increase overall income to cope with the financial
challenges it is facing. This work builds on earlier
work to develop a single and consistent fees and
charges policy with transparency in the setting of
its fees and charges.

Existing fees and charges are, wherever possible,
increased annually by 3% to meet the costs of
inflation. However there are restrictions on the
levels of income councils can charge for some
services e.g. homecare services.

The budget strategy for 2015/16 was based on
fundamental three year business plan reviews
across all Council service portfolios. Within these
plans were proposals for increasing income
including:-

e maximisation of external funding

e increase in joint funding from Health

e Public Protection for increases to reflect
cost

e review of car parking charges

e increased charging for some services

These reviews led to an increase in budgeted
income across portfolios of £2.3m in 2015/16.

For 2016/17 and 2017/18, the Council will need
to develop its income policy and identify new
opportunities for income to help bridge the gap
from the reduction in national funding.

Income Dependency

The Council is dependent on being able to
generate income to fund some of its core services.
For example, Leisure Services relies on £6m from
income, mainly from its customers, whilst Facilities
Services relies on £3m from external income. In
Catering the strategy for fees and charges needs
to consider the impact of charging to avoid turning
customers away.

Constraints on Charging Policy

In recent vyears, Welsh Government have
introduced measures such as the First Steps
Improvement Package which introduced a then
cap of £50 per week on the amount that Local
Authorities could charge for Domiciliary Care.
This led to a loss of income to Flintshire County
Council of £0.426m in 2011/12 and has limited
the Council’'s ability to increase income for future
years.

Reviews of these national constraints are needed
to give councils the freedom to recover more
income to subsidise some of the services it
provides.

The impact of reductions in Revenue Support Grant is £19.4m offset by increase in

Council Tax income of £6.2m

Page 32

14



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2015 - 2018

0. lotal Impacts

The total impact of known national pressures is £1.6m
The total impact of major local pressures is £9.9m
The total amount of inflation forecast is £12.5m

The total amount of workforce pressures is £15.6m (excluding inflation)

The impact of reductions in Revenue Support Grant is £19.4m offset by increase in
Council Tax income of £6.2m

Total impact is £ 52.8m

Page 33

15



Page 34



Agenda ltem 5

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: MONDAY, 13 JULY 2015

REPORT BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE

SUBJECT: REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2015/16

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01

2.00

3.00

3.01

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

To provide Members with the Revenue Budget Monitoring 2015/16
(Month 2) report.

BACKGROUND

The revenue Budget Monitoring 2015/16 (Month 2) report will be
presented to Cabinet on 14 July 2015. A copy of the report is
attached as Appendix A to this report.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are asked to note the report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Page 35



9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None.

APPENDICES

Appendix A — Revenue Budget Monitoring 2015/15 (Month 2) Report.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Sara Dulson
Telephone: 01352 702287
Email: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 36



Appendix A

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 14 JULY 2015

REPORT BY: CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER

SUBJECT: REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2015/16

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To provide Members with the first available revenue budget
monitoring information for the Council Fund and Housing Revenue
Account (HRA) for 2015/16.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  The Council Fund budget and the HRA budget for 2015/16 were
agreed by Council on 17 February 2015.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  As in previous years, during the early part of the 2015/16 financial
year Corporate Finance resources have been dedicated to the closure
of the accounts for 2014/15 to ensure that the statutory deadline for
completion of the draft statement of accounts by the end of June is
achieved. The draft Statement of Accounts are to be presented to the
Audit Committee on 15 July and the 2014/15 revenue final outturn
report is included elsewhere on this agenda.

3.02 Although resources have been prioritised to complete the 2014/15
statutory accounts significant work has already been undertaken to
review the progress and risks associated with the efficiencies included
in the 2015/16 budget.

3.03 The 2015/16 budget includes £12.874m of efficiencies relating to

Business Planning and Corporate Financing efficiencies across
Portfolios. The significant level of efficiencies needed to deliver the
budget has led to the establishment of Programme Boards for each
Portfolio attended by both Officers and Members, with the remit of
tracking efficiencies and highlighting risks and mitigating actions in
relation to the achievement of the 2015/16 efficiencies.

Page 37



3.04

3.05

3.06

3.07

3.08

3.09

Appendix A

In addition Service Managers and Corporate Finance have continued
to liaise with regard to any early changes in demand, particularly in
known volatile service areas despite the fact that in the first couple of
months of a new financial year it is more difficult to rely on trends
around service demand for forecasting purposes.

This first budget monitoring report of the year does not provide the
level of detail which follows from month three onwards but does
highlight the risks identified through the work referred to above in
paragraphs 3.03 — 3.04 and these are detailed below.

Disability Services (Resources & Regulated Services)

There is a projected underspend of £0.300m against a new pressure
of £0.338m in respect of the transfer of the responsibility for the
former Independent Living Fund (ILF) from UK Government to
devolved administrations. The pressure was included in the budget on
the basis of the amount being paid to local authorities being
distributed on the RSG formula. Following completion of the
consultation (after the Council's budget had been set), it was
determined that the funding for this would be distributed as a specific
grant amount based on the amount actually required to pay service
users. There is no allocation to cover the administration of the scheme
so it is intended to keep an element of this allocation to fund the
additional administration burden and to cover for obligations to meet
employer liability insurance for carers employed by service users.

Business Services Income (Charging Policy Fee Income)

There is a projected excess of income above the level budgeted of
£0.300m in respect of charging policy fee income. Welsh Government
increased the maximum charge cap to £60 per week with effect from
1st April 2015. A budget efficiency of £0.100m was applied as an
increase to the target income budget. The latest projections indicate
that total income will exceed budget by £0.300m.

Children’s Services (Family Placement)

There is currently a projected overspend of £0.170m on this service to
meet service demand. There have been significant overspends on this
service for each of the last four financial years, however the final
outturn for 2014/15 reflected a reduction in the level of overspend to
£0.222m.

Funding for Voluntary Sector Organisations

An efficiency of £0.203m was approved as part of the 2015/16 budget
in respect of a programme of phased reductions in payments to
voluntary sector organisations over a period of three years. The
original estimate of achieving £0.203m efficiency is now known to be
not realistic, however this amount will be found as a cumulative total
over 3 years.

Page 38



3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

Appendix A

Localities (Locality Teams)

There remains a significant demand influenced pressure on
domiciliary care provision which is a continuation of the pressure
experienced in last financial year. The final outturn position in 2014/15
was an overspend of £0.837m.

In 2015/16, the early projection for domiciliary care is an overspend of
£0.514m, which is significantly less than in 2014/15 primarily due to
the loss of one very high cost care package.

As was the case in 2014/15, this significant overspend is offset by a
projected underspend on Residential Care which is primarily due to an
excess of income above budget mainly in respect of property related
income but with some influence of free nursing income. There is
currently a projected underspend of £0.620m on Residential Care.

Recycling

The recycling market (paper in particular) is going through a volatile
period with fluctuating re-cycle sale values. This is likely to impact on
2015/16 recycling income levels for the Council. There is a risk of
under achieving 2015/16 income targets.

Planning Fee Income

The anticipated increase in planning fees by Welsh Government will
not now take place until 15t October 2015 which means that there will
potentially be a shortfall of £0.125m on the budgeted efficiency.

Rationalisation of Household Recycling Sites

Further options are being considered and consultation undertaken in
relation to the proposed closure of Hope recycling centre which has
the effect of reducing the proposed efficiency. In addition, the delay in
introducing changes to the operating times at Connah’'s Quay and
Flint sites will result in a projected shortfall on the budgeted efficiency
of £0.175m

Highways Services - Reduction of Cleansing Standards

The implementation date is now anticipated to be 1%t January 2016
which will result in a shortfall in the efficiency of £0.100m. A separate
report on this policy is scheduled for Cabinet on this agenda.

Waste services

There is a projected shortfall in income of £0.150m from the gas
engines at Brookhill and Standard Landfill Sites due to issues with the
electrical equipment.

Out of County Placements

As has been the case in the past the volatility in demand and the
impacts on service costs cannot be predicted with any certainty.
Therefore there is always a risk of significant variances occurring

Page 39



3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

3.21

3.22

3.23

Appendix A

although this area will continue to be closely monitored.

People & Resources

The 2015/16 budget includes a Business Plan efficiency of £0.105m
which relates to workforce efficiencies within Human Resources.
There is a risk that this efficiency will not be met in full this financial
year, though this will be reported on in more detail later in the
reporting cycle.

Central & Corporate Finance

The 2015/16 budget includes an efficiency for Workforce related
proposals of £0.300m which relate to leave buy back, use of pool cars
and staff parking. At this early stage it is anticipated that there will be
a shortfall of £0.150m in achieving this within the current financial
year. However, alternative ways of achieving the full efficiency will
continue to be explored.

Within the Central Loans and Investment Account (CLIA), an
efficiency of £0.600m was included in the 2015/16 budget in relation
to the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) subsidy buy out. Due to a
change in the settlement amount which Welsh Government
announced after the budget was set it is now unlikely that this will be
achieved. However, a full review of the CLIA is being undertaken on
this complex account which will provide an overall assessment of the
impact on this account.

Provision has been made in the 2014/15 accounts for the phase 1 and
2 decommissioning, decontamination and clearance of the former
chemical site in Sandycroft. Monthly costs for ongoing security and
maintenance of the site are in the region of £0.030m and will
accumulate throughout the financial year until site disposal.

Within the centrally held Corporate Finance account, there is currently
a potential underspend on Non-Standard Inflation of £0.335m which
will continue to be held untii an assessment of the in year
requirements for inflation has been undertaken later in the year.

An amount of £1.747m was included in the budget in relation to
estimated additional pension costs following the triennial actuarial
valuation. Initial work suggests that the full amount may not be
required due to workforce reductions however further work will be
undertaken on this prior to Month 3 to consider the overall impact for
2015/16 and future years.

The emerging risks and issues identified in 3.06 — 3.22 are the
significant items that have been raised at this early stage in the year.
Where there are potential budget pressures opportunities to mitigate
them will be considered and implemented where appropriate to help
ensure that spend can be brought in line to the overall budget. A full
detailed budget monitoring position will be reported for the first quarter

Page 40



3.24

4.00

4.01

4.02

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

0.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

Appendix A

of the year to Cabinet in September.

Housing Revenue Account

There are no significant variations identified at this stage within the
Housing Revenue Account.

UNEARMARKED RESERVES

The final level of Council Fund Contingency Reserve brought forward
into 2015/16 was £4.745m as detailed in the 2014/15 outturn report
elsewhere on this agenda (subject to Audit).

As detailed in the Final Outturn report it is recommended that the use
of the additional Contingency Reserve of £1.804m is held and
considered for any additional in-year and future investment in change
in the context of the MTFP.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet is recommended to note the report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None directly as a result of this report.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985

Page 41



Appendix A

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Sara Dulson
Telephone: 01352 702287
Email: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 42



Agenda ltem 6

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: MONDAY, 13 JULY 2015

REPORT BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE

SUBJECT: REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING
2014/15 (OUTTURN)

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To provide members with the Revenue Budget monitoring 2014/15
and Capital Programme 2014/15 reports as at Outturn.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 Revenue Budget Monitoring 2014/15 (Outturn)

The Revenue Budget Monitoring 2014/15 (Outturn) will be presented
to Cabinet on 14 July 2015. A copy of the report is attached Appendix
A to this report.

2.02 Capital Programme 2014/15 (Outturn)
The Capital Programme 2014/15 (Outturn) report will be presented to
Cabinet on 14 July 2015. A copy of the report is attached Appendix B
to this report.

3.00 RECOMMENDATIONS

3.01 Members are asked to note the report.

4.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.01  As set out in the report.

5.00 ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

5.01 None.

6.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

6.01 None.

7.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT

Page 43



7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

None.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None.

APPENDICES

Appendix A — Revenue Budget Monitoring 2014/15 (Outturn) report.
Appendix B — Capital Programme 2014/15 (Outturn)

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Sara Dulson
Telephone: 01352 702287
Email: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 44



Appendix A

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 14 JULY 2015

REPORT BY: CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER

SUBJECT: REVENUE __BUDGET __ MONITORING __ 2014/15
(OUTTURN)

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To provide Members with the revenue outturn budget monitoring information for
2014/15 for the Council Fund and Housing Revenue Account based on actual
income and expenditure (subject to Audit).

1.02 INDEX OF CONTENTS

Section 2 Executive Summary

Section 3 Council Fund Summary Outturn

Section 4 Carry Forward Requests

Section 5 Inflation

Section 6 Unearmarked Reserves

Section 7 Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

Section 8 Recommendations

Appendix 1 | Council Fund — Movement in Variances from Month
12

Appendix 2 | Council Fund Variance Summary

Appendix 3 | Efficiencies Summary

Appendix 4 | Movements on Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves
Appendix 5 | HRA Variance Summary

2.00 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

2.01  The final year end position is as follows:

Council Fund

e Netin year expenditure was £1.804m lower than budget.
e A contingency reserve balance at 31 March 2015 of £4.745m.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

e Net in year expenditure was £0.345m less than budget.
e A closing balance as at 31 March 2015 of £1.510m.

Page 45



3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

Appendix A

COUNCIL FUND OUTTURN

The table below shows the final position by portfolio which reflects the Council's
new Operating Model which came into effect on 1 June 2014.

The table below shows in year expenditure to be £1.804m less than budget.

In-Year Over/
(Under) spend
TOTAL EXPENDITURE | Original | Revised Outturn
AND INCOME Budget | Budget
Month
12 Outturn
£m £m £m £m £m

Social Services 59.889 | 58.046 58.168 | 0.124 0.122
Community & Enterprise 14.368 | 13.367 12.756 | (0.613) | (0.611)
Streetscene &
Transportation 28.381 | 29.558 29.642 | 0.074 0.084
Planning & Environment 6.394 5.644 5.420 | (0.246) | (0.224)
Education & Youth 97.167 | 97.155 97.234 | 0.078 0.079
People & Resources 5.395 5.029 4.999 | (0.029) | (0.030)
Governance 8.821 8.388 8.489 | 0.103 0.101
Organisational Change 9.738 8.923 8.778 | (0.165) | (0.145)
Chief Executive 2.160 3.151 3.111 | (0.040) | (0.040)
Central & Corporate
Finance 22.863 | 25.915 24.775 | (1.345) | (1.140)
Total 255.176 | 255.176 | 253.372 | (2.059) | (1.804)

The reasons for all movements from Month 12 are summarised in appendix 1 with
the overall variances summarised within appendix 2.

Significant Budget Movement Between month 12 to outturn

Changes in revised budget from month 12 relate mainly to adjustments relating to
the single status rebasing exercise, property maintenance reallocations, and
workforce efficiency accounting adjustments.

BRIEF OVERVIEW OF THE YEAR

The early monitoring of the revenue budget for the Council Fund took into account
the significant work that needed to be undertaken to rebase the staffing budgets
following the implementation of the Single Status agreement in June 2014. As a
result, the Month 3 — 6 monitoring reports focussed on non-pay areas with the
assumption of no variation on pay budgets due to the fact that the relevant funding
had been set aside through the single status funding strategy.

Page 46



3.06

3.07

3.08

3.09

3.10

3.1

3.12

Appendix A

The early Month 3 position projected an overspend of £0.603m with a key influence
being a projected overspend within Social Services due to demand on Adults
domiciliary care as well as pressures within Children’s services on Boarded Out and
Direct Payments. Further challenges were experienced within Streetscene with a
projected overspend of £0.293m due to delays in the trunk road collaboration
project and a service review to be completed later than anticipated.

The Month 4 position reduced this early projection back into a minor underspend
which was mainly due to the previously reported overspends in Social Services
being offset by projected underspends in residential care, as well as a projected
underspend within Community and Enterprise due to a higher level of surplus on
Council tax collection and a projected underspend on the Council Tax Reduction
Scheme (CTRS).

The 2014/15 budget included an efficiency of £3.1m to be achieved from workforce
reductions and two phases of voluntary redundancy programmes were undertaken
in year to maximise the contribution to this. However due to the number of
workforce related efficiencies within portfolios as part of Value for Money, the
recurring efficiencies to be achieved against this were not as much as anticipated.
In Month 5, a cost control exercise was undertaken with all Portfolios asked to
identify areas of non-essential expenditure to maximise the year end position to
mitigate early concerns about the achievement of this efficiency and as a result an
additional £0.630m of one off efficiencies were identified to improve the in year
position.

As part of the completion of the rebasing of staffing budgets, an in year challenge of
vacancies was undertaken across all Portfolios with budgets for vacancies that
were not anticipated to be filled in year, given up on a one off basis to contribute
towards the achievement of the in year workforce efficiency. As a result of that, the
in year projected underspend increased in Month 9 to £1.978m.

Throughout 2014/15, the Council had an obligation to maintain security and the
operation of the orphaned chemical site in Sandycroft which incurred running costs
of £0.392m. In Month 10, the Council reported that negotiations with Welsh
Government to gain a contribution towards the cost of decontamination of the site
has been successful and a grant of £0.700m had been awarded. The cost of the
phase 1 decontamination of the site was also included at £0.800m.

Between Month 10 and 12, the finalisation of the single status rebasing work and
the impact of in year vacancy savings to contribute to the overall workforce
efficiency had given a further positive impact on the outturn position. A further
provision of £0.800m relating to phase 2 of the risk closure and site disposal of the
orphaned site at Sandycroft was included due to the need to account for potential
future liabilities.

As part of the outturn report, the Support Service recharges which are undertaken
as part of the final account closure has led to an adverse variance of £0.222m
which is due to the level of recharge to the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) being
less than anticipated.

Page 47



3.13

3.14

3.15

4.00

4.01

4.02

4.03

5.00

5.01

Appendix A

Programme of Efficiencies
Corporate and Functional Efficiencies

The 2014/15 budget contained £8.840m of specific efficiencies comprising
Corporate Value for Money (VFM) on Procurement and Back to Basics of £1.301m
and specific Functional VFM efficiencies of £7.539m.

The table below summarises the final position in relation to these and the analysis
shows that £7.675m (87%) was achieved which resulted in a net underachievement
of £1.165m. Details of the efficiencies not achieved in full are shown in appendix 3.

Value of | Value of
Status of Efficiency Budgeted | Actual | (Under)Over
Efficiency | Efficiency | Achievement
£m £m £m
Fully Achieved 7.033 7.033 0.000
Achieved in Part 0.720 0.657 (0.063)
Not Achieved 1.087 (0.015) (1.102)
Total 8.840 7.675 (1.165)

Workforce Efficiencies

The 2014/15 budget also contained £3.1m of Workforce Efficiencies. The final
position is a net over achievement on all workforce related efficiencies (including
admin support) of £0.354m. This is a positive movement of £0.019m over month 12
due to an increase in overall workforce efficiencies of £0.019m.

CARRY FORWARD REQUESTS

Various requests to carry forward funding into 2015/16 were identified in the month
12 report. The carry forward requests were all approved. There are two additional
carry forward requests being made in this report which are shown below.

Community & Enterprise — A carry forward for £0.031m is requested for the
continuation of the Welfare Rights Programme.

Community & Enterprise — A carry forward for £0.011m is requested for the DWP
Fraud and Error Reduction Incentive Scheme which is continuing into 2015/16.

INFLATION

Included within the 2014/15 budget were provisions for pay (£1.316m), targeted
price inflation (£0.590m), non-standard inflation (£0.670m) and income (£0.151m).

Page 48



5.02

6.00

6.01

6.02

6.03

6.04

6.05

6.06

7.00

7.01

7.02

7.03

Appendix A

The amounts for non-standard inflation (NSI) (Fuel, Energy and Food) are held
centrally and allocated out to portfolio areas only where a funding need is
evidenced. Allocations of NSI have been made to departments where there has
been an evidenced need, this has resulted in an underspend of £0.144m on the
amount required for fuel, an underspend of £0.054m on the amount required for
food, together with an underspend of £0.042m on the amount required for Non-
Domestic Rates.

UNEARMARKED RESERVES

The 2013/14 final outturn reported to Cabinet on 15 July 2014 showed
unearmarked reserves at 31 March 2014 (above the base level of £5.834m) of
£5.328m.

This position reflected a contribution of £0.745m made from reserves as part of an
accounting adjustment for termination benefits arising from the workforce
efficiencies for the Senior Management Phase 1 programme. As budget provision
was made within the 2014/15 budget for this, this has now been transferred back
into reserves in the current financial year.

Section 6.05 of the 2014/15 budget report outlined the investment strategy required
to fund one off costs and transitional funding for efficiencies that could not be found
in full in 2014/15. This identified a potential £3.7m available to fund these from the
contingency reserve as well as utilising the Single Status/Equal Pay Reserve.

An amount of £2.5m was required from the Contingency Reserve to fund the one off
costs in 2014/15.

The Month 2 Monitoring report to Cabinet on 15" July also advised members of an
allocation of £0.696m from the contingency reserve to fund investment costs
approved under delegated powers.

Taking into account all of the above and the final outturn, the balance on the
contingency reserve at 31 March 2015 is £4.745m. This is summarised in Appendix
4.

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

On 18" February 2014 the Council approved a Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
budget for 2014/15 of £29.886m. The budget provided for a closing balance of
£0.956m, which at 3.2% of total expenditure satisfies the prudent approach of
ensuring a minimum level of 3%.

The 2013/14 final outturn reported to Cabinet on 15" July 2014 showed a closing
balance at the end of 2013/14 of £1.662m.

The outturn position reporting an overall underspend of £0.345m and a closing
balance of £1.510m, which at 5% of total expenditure satisfies the prudent
approach of ensuring a minimum level of 3%.

Page 49



7.04

8.00

9.00

10.00

11.00

12.00

13.00

14.00

15.00

16.00

Appendix A

Appendix 5 details the reasons for significant variances.

RECOMENDATIONS

Members are recommended to :-

a) Note the overall report.

b) Note the Council Fund contingency sum as at 315t March 2015, subject to
audit (paragraph 6.06)

c) Note the final level of balances on the Housing Revenue Account, subject to
audit (paragraph 7.03)

d) Approve the carry forward requests as stated in Section 4

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The financial implications are set out in Sections 3.00 — 8.00 of the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None

APPENDICES

Council Fund — Movement in Variances from Month 4 — Appendix 1
Council Fund — Budget variances — Appendix 2

Council Fund — Efficiencies not fully achieved — Appendix 3

Council Fund — Movements on unearmarked reserves — Appendix 4
Housing Revenue Account Variances — Appendix 5

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985

Page 50



Appendix A

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Sara Dulson
Telephone: 01352 702287
Email: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 51



Page 52



COUNCIL FUND - REVENUE BUDGET 2014/15

e FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
FSl_r y Filint
ﬂ‘mSh'r@ Budget Monitoring (Qutturn)

Summary of Movement from Month 12

Month 12

Portfolios

Central and Corporate Finance
Variance as per Cabinet Report

Outturn

Portfolios

Central and Corporate Finance
Variance as per Directorate Returns

Change Requiring Explanation

Social Services

Minor variances of less than £0.025m
Development & Resources
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m

Total: Social Services

Community & Enterprise

Minor variances of less than £0.025m
Customer & Housing Services

Regeneration

Revenues & Benefits

Total minor variances of less than £0.025m

Total: Community & Enterprise

Streetscene & Transportation Portfolio

Streetscene
Other minor changes of less than £0.025m.
Subtotal: Streetscene

Highways Strategy & Traffic Services
Other minor changes of less than £0.025m.

Subtotal: Highways Strategy & Traffic Services

Total: Streetscene & Transportation

Planning & Environment Portfolio

Planning
Other minor changes of less than £0.025m.
Subtotal: Planning

Public Protection

Other minor changes of less than £0.025m.
Subtotal: Public Protection

Total: Planning & Environment

Education & Youth

Minor variances of less than £0.025m
School Management & Information
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m

Page 53

Appendix 1

£m £m
(0.714)
(1.345)
(2.059)
(0.664)
(1.140)
(1.804)
0.255
(0.002)
{0.002)
(0.002)
0.009
(0.006)
(0.001)
0.002
0.002
0.005
0.005
0.005
0.005
0.010
0.010
0.010
0.012
0.012
0.022
0.001
0.001



Total: Education & Youth

People & Resources

HR & OD
o Minor changes of less than £0.025m.
Subtotal: HR & OD

Corporate Finance

s Minor changes of less than £0.025m.
Subtotal: Corporate Finance

Total: People & Resources
Governance
Minor variances of less than £0.025m
s ICT.

e Legal Services.
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m

Total: Governance

Organisational Change

Minor variances of less than £0.025m
e Engineering Services
e Facilities Services
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m

Total: Organisational Change

Central & Corporate Finance

e Support Services recharge to Housing Revenue Accout

e Minor changes of less than £0.025m.
Total: Central & Corporate Finance

Total Changes

Page 54

Appendix 1

0.001
0.002
0.002
(0.003)
(0.003)
(0.001)
(0.001)
(0.001)
(0.002)
(0.002)
0.021
(0.001)
0.020
0.020
0.222
(0.017)
0.205
0.255



"MaInal Japun dasy|

‘weg0'03

J0 puadsiano pajoafoid jejo) ay) Jo wGoN 03 410} SIUNOJJ. SIY |
‘sjuawAed joa.1p Jo 10adsal u| sjaispuad Aq papiacid sjuswabuene
poddns ay} jo 1509 ay) 0} anp Ajuiew s| puadsiaao pajoafosd ay

S80°0

S80°0

0v9°0

§65°0

(saoiniag
Angesig) seaneg
Auiigesiq pue
uonisuel] - synpy
10} S2IIAIBS [BID0S

"MalAR1 Japun daay

‘aled awoy uo W/c0'03

J0 puadsiano ue pue ‘wodsues) uo W |L0°0F pue aJes Aep uo W/ L0'03
‘saf)iioe) aJedel)x3 uo W/ g0 03 JO spuadsiapun Jaypny ale alay).
‘(sabieyo Buusjes uo Ajurews)

w90 03 Jo s801BS § Saliddng pue (S)s00 saNIln Ajufew) wzso 03
40 S)S00 sas|wald ‘w1003 Jo Aed uo spuadsiano Aq Jasyo si
puadsiapun siyj (w20 03 Jo awoou Juelb JJo-auo mau pue woy | 03
10 suonNqEIUO2 JUald paseasdu) Bulaq) wy L2 03 40 dWodu| |euolippe
0} anp st Yaiym ‘wggn 03 Jo puadsiapun jau a1e)) [BHUSpPISaY

(9LL°0)

(9110

129’

LEL°S

(Juawsiqeay

2 axeju))

s20IAag paje|nbay
Y SO0IN0SAY - SYNPY
10} S30IAIBS |BID0S

"M3IAR] Japun daay|

‘W00 03 0 puadsiano
18U B 0} Junowe sasueleA J1aylQ sisidesay | |euonednadQ JUBHNSUCD
J0 8sN jo uoyonpai 0} anp WeyQ 03 4o puadsiapun Jayuny e pue juesb

pung aiep sjelpawsaju) jo abessn 0} anp wWeE 03 Jo puadsiapun
Jayuny e sy asay] “(Buisinu aaly 10j Wy L 03 Buipn)oul 186pnq

SA0QE BWOOU] U] S9SEaJoU| Jayuny snid ‘awosu) pajejas Apadoud

JO |9A8] BY) Ul 8seaI0U| UB 0} ANp W | £°0F Jo puadsiapun ue ‘siapinoid
awoy ases 0} sjuawded uo wg g 03 Jo puadsiapun ue ‘sapnjoul
4olym) a1ed [euapisal uo wggo'03 Jo puadsiapun pajoafoid e Aq
18sy0 Bulaq si a1ed Aenoiwop uo puadsiano pajosfoid jueayiubis ay
‘euawap yum ajdoad jo siaqunu Buisealoul pue pasu

10 Aixajdwoos paseasou ‘ayoid onessowsp Buibueyo ay) yuswsajqeal
1sed Jnyssaoans Buimo|joy @dia1as ayy 0} Buiuinyal sualo Aq pasuanjul
‘ase AeljjIsiuog UYim w/e8'03 Jo puadsiano Jo [9A3)] a|qels Alie)

B SUlBWIa) aJay) ‘Janamoy ‘BaJe siy) Ul Juswanosdw {[BI3A0 Ue SI a1ay ]

¥90°0

¥90°0

09ZvlL

96l vl

(seneos0) swea |
AyjeooT - sinpy
10) S32IAIBS |BID0S

Sad|AI9G (1908

pasinbay uopoy

asueue Joley jo asnen

(w3)
Z1L Yiuop

soueuep

(w3)
soueUeA

(w3)
wnyno

(w3)
1ebpng

pesiaay

L ITNETS

¢ XIpuadady

AHYWWNS - NHNLLNO

S33UBNEA PUNy JIPUN0D)

BUINONUGI 396pNg

Page 55



"Wwep003 Jo
puadsJapun }au B 0} JUNOLWE S8OUBLEA JOUIW JSY)O SNOUBA "WEY L 0F
10 gHNOg woy awooul papuny Juiof Aq 18s 4O WEES 03 JO puadsiano

(saoneg

Aungesig) sowusg
Aygesiqg pue s)npy
a|qelauInA - sINpy

‘MalAa4 Japun daay|| aleo |enuapisal pue sabesoed aled pajoafosd Juaind Jo SIS0 S108Y49Y|SLE0 S/€0 0612 G18'1L 10} S3IAIBS |BI190S
(221n18G asnsIn
aouesqns g yljesH
‘SUNO9Y JO uosud wouy 310U |ejuapy) 186png
HoUs Je spuewlsp pue siaqunu jualjo ui sebueys oisualod - S)npy
0} anp AnejoA jenuajod - malaal Japun daay| "G/ 102 10} sabeyoed ased yusuna sjoaay |(0z21°0) {0z1°0) 610 ¥1€°0 10} S3OIAIBS |BIDOS
(8211485 asnsiN
aouelsqns B yjeaH
{ejuspy) adInBS
‘WwG00'03F J0 puadsiapun jau B 0} Junowe Keloiwog pue
S3DUBLIBA JOUILW JBYJ0 SNOLBA ‘W60 03 Bulelo) sjsoo abesoed mau {enuapisay synpy
‘mainal Japun daay|| leuoyppe apis Guoje sabexoed Aeoiwoq pue jenuapisay Ui sabueyd| £60°0 £60°0 9680 £08°0 10} S32IAIBS |BID0S
'91/G10Z wouy ainssaid Jeak ||ny panosrdde (sameso)
Anuaosal ay) jo 1oedw Jeak ped e sjoayal siy]. (S710Q) SIUBWISSassy 10)JeuIpIo-0D)
Buipsenbajeg sauaqr Jo uoneaudaq J0) palinbal adiape |esipaw Buipsenbajes - synpy
‘malnal Japun daay]| pue yels Aouabe 10) S}S0D Paseaou) 0) anp S| dUBLIBA 3SJaApe aul /00 +20°0 ¥62°0 0220 J0} S32IAIAG [BID0S
‘WQGO 0F 0 spuadsiapun Joujw Jau
12410 “(ea1e sy} Ul 91./510Z WwoJj Aouaioys 196png mau sy} aapyoe
0} djay |im gHNOY Woly paniadal Bulag swodul mau ay] "WEen 03
JO puadsiaAo Jau e 0} JUNOWe S3oUBLEA JOUIW JBYIO {(WSEZ 03
10 sJs09 Juawade|d [enuspIsal uo puadsispun ue pue ‘sjuswsoe|d (seo1nu88 Aljigesia)
papuny jutof payndsip Ajsnoiaaid jo 10adsas ul pieog UyesH Alsisaiun sa0|108G pajenbay
1apejlempe?) IS)9g Woly WO 0F JO SWOodul [BUOHIPPE 18U Ag pasuan|jul Q S32IN0SAY - SYNPY
‘MajAB) Japun deay||  Ajuiew sI yoiym) ‘wggg'03 40 puadsiapun pajosfoid Buia] pauoddng |z 0)  |(€2.°0)  |€28'FL gvsGlL Joj saVIIBS |B1D0S
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Z1 yuop 18bpng
pasnbay uopoy asueuep Jofey jo asned soueLEn ssueuep | wnpno pesiey LIV ETS

¢ XIpuaddy

AYVYIWANS - NYNLLNO

S@0UBLEA punj |1DUN0Y

BUIG)UON 195pNg

Page 56



1<1XY [44X!] 891°8S 9%0°8S S821AIBG [RI20G |2)0)
(o1eba166e)
SBJUBLIBA UBIP|IYD
"Jua.in2ai aq 0} pajaadxa JoU NG MBIARL 0} ANUHRUOYD "S9OUBLEA JoUIW SNOUBA|80L 0 80L°0 0089 2699 10§ S8OIAISS 13YI0
syuawaoe|d
‘sabexyoed aled xa|dwoo Jo Auno) jo InQ
‘malAal Japun dasy|| Jaquinu paseasdu) ue Aq pasuanjul Ajujew si puadsiano pajoafosd ayy (2220 1120 50.°€ 8Zp'e - S32IAIG S,UaIPIYD
‘palwIe|2 80 MOU JOUUBD YdIym /¢ L 0Z o) Bunejas
WwQE0°03 Jo ainypuadxa snid ‘wop0 03 921nu8s papuny juelb e Bulaq
‘mMalAal Japun dasyy| siuy 0) anp saseasoul Aed snielg 916ulg Jo sjoedwi papunjun S0}y (9200 900 8100 2000 ue)s BuiA|4
‘slaied ay}
"sa10uUaIoIYd a|qissod| Joj 2ouemolie Bujobuo ue JoeINE AlqELIBAUI YoIYM SIBpIo diysuelpiens
pue Buiuueld ainny WO} ||IM PUB PRISPISUOD [e10adg pue aouapisay 10} SISPIO UNOD JO Jaquinu Buiseasou
Bulaq s1 yoiym Jo SWOIINO 3y} UNBHSPUN [aY) 0) SNP OS[E SI SIY) JO UBd '92IAIBS aU) Ulyum sjuswade|d aied J21so) Juswade|d Ajiwe
uaaq sey Wea | Jusawsde|d Ajile sy} JO MaIAI Y 10 JaquINU By} Ul ISB3IIUI UB JO )NSaJ B S| puadsiono wggz 03 @Ul |22z 0 2220 6v'C 122¢ - §92IA13G S,UIP(IYD
(e1e621668)
SaOUBLEBA S33IN0SaY
‘JUa.N23J aq 0} Paloadxa Jou INQ M3IA3I 0} BNUNUOYD *‘S9OUBLEA JOUIW SNOWEA| /00 S¥0°0 ¥8v'e (e 9 Juawdojaaaq Jayi0
awoou|
- S32IAJBG SSaulsng
"yoam Jad GG3 0} yeam Jad 0G3 woy des abieys wnwixew - $30IN0S3Yy
"M3IASI PUE JO)IUOW O} SNUNUOD [aY) JO [9A3] BU) Ul JUSWUIBA0S YS|apn Aq aseasour ue jo yoedw)|(0L2 0) {oL2°0) (e82°L) (e26°1) 9 Juswdojaraqg
(o)ebaibbe)
S3oUBLIBA S)NPY
"JuaINdal aq 0} Pajoadxa J0U NG M3IASI 0) BNURUOYD 'saoueueA Joulw snouep |(8z1L°0) (8Z1°0) /15 Sv9'S 10} S2UNIBS JBYID
(w3) (w) (w3) (wz)
2l yiuopy 18bpng
paJinbay uonoy asuepep Jolepy Jo asne) oUBLIBA osuepep | wnpnQ posiney ERITNET

¢ Xipuaddy

AAVNNNS - NYINLLNO

S30UBLEA punj 1oUnoy

BUIIGHUO 19bpng

Page 57



asudiaug

(c190)  |(LL90) |9sLZL 198°¢l ® Aunwwod [2joy
"W/ 0003 JO SIDUBLIBA JOUIW L0 0} anp Aouaidig
‘w103 JO S)IosuUu0) anysiuld Jo 10adsas ul Adusioly3 "ewooul
abieyoas uonejsuel) Uys@PA\ paonpas 0} anp aunssaid wezo'03|(160°0) (160°0) 1260 2990 S3IIAJDG JBWOISND
‘91/51
OJul SBNUNUO Yoiym SWaYydg SAljUasU| uononpay ‘S9OUBUEA
1043 pue pneld JMQa dY) 4o 10adsal ul w10 03 |ou o) anp ainssasd W Z003 YV WOEZ 03 JO S1s00 Apisang gH
91/G1 ul swweiboid subiy |30 10adsal Ul SJ8JSURI) SJUNOJE [BUIH "SWBYIS UORINPAY XE] {19UN0D
BIBJ|O M AU} JO UOHENUIUOD BY) SPIEMO) W LE0 03 |eul 1os uoisirosd palebpnq aul uo WeEL 03 Jo pusdsiapun "weLL 03
:pJemuoy Aued 0} jsanbay|jo pung uonosjjon xe] |1punod ay) uo snidins B 0} anp puadsiapun|{(685°0) (065°0) 601 69601 sjjouag p SanuaAsy
‘WZ00'03F JO SeoueLEA JoUlw JBY10
"PION Ul SHIom JS)BAA USIPM AQ pajeqlaoexe ‘awodul Jo Ssso| pue
S]S0D |BAOWIAI 8)SEM Pasealoul 0} anp Si8yJew Ul Weso 03 40 (IBJHOYS | 2600 160°0 GLS0 $9%°0 uonesauabay
‘WEE0 03 Jo puadsiapun ue ul pajnsal paynuap!
saouBLeA JOulll JBYIQ w8003 jo uswdinbs asedsiapuisIed
JO 3dueUSUEW pue Sseyond Byl SpPIemO}  SJS00  pasealdu||8y0’0 800 0€°0 [eTerAly) ajdoad Buinoddng
‘wgEn 03 Jo puadsiano
ue Ul pa)NsaJ PayYUaP! SBOUBLEA JOUIW JBYIQ ‘WZOL 0F JO puadsiano
ue ul paynsas Jswaindoid JYyHS jo 10adsas ur aunypusdx3y
"SWO0UI pung UOlUBAaId SSJBWOoH pue suonodsfoid uoilepowiwodoe
g9g Buipn|oul UCEPOWILLIODDY SSSIRWOH U0 WigL 03 PUB WYL 03 JO S390IABG
sjubIy aJejjapn Jo 10adsal ul awooul [euolippe 0} anp S| puadsiapun|(g8e0'0)  |(620°0)  |286°0 910'L BuisnoH g Jawiolsngy
asudisiuz
B Hunwwo)
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Zl yiuoy jabipng
paiinbay uoyoy aoueuep Jofey jo asne) souBLIEA asuepeA | wnpno pesiney ERITNET

Z XIpusday

AYVYWIAINS - NdNLLNO

S3DUBLEA puny [OUNCY
BULGHUO Yobpng

Page 58



uonepodsuel}

¥20°0 ¥80°0 Zv9°62 855°62 ' 8UBISIBANG [EI0L
SaduBLBA
"uInpno {euy je sjuawjsnipe Jouln [(500°0) 5000 10021 z00'elL J3yjo jo ajebaibby
"uonoalip aAlsod e ul Guianow mou "1eak [eioueUl 2Y) JO PUS SY] SPIEMO) SAINSO|D PEO)
SI 8Woou| g pollad je soueleq 0l10j0d X023 10 asN pue s30I10N Aleuad pax|4 wouy awodul Jo sjaAd| Burseasour Apubis{(91L0°0) (9L0°0) 1200 L£0°0 Sylomisans
‘91/510z 40} sjesodoud Buluueld ssauisng jo ved ‘siojesadQ sng o} syuswAed Apisqns sng|(280°0) (280°0) 0EE’L AR AN uoneuodsues |
"aIniny ay} ojul }s00 Bulobuo| "Wz 03 10 MAIASY BDIAISS SIUB)INSUOY JIaAA 0) Buneras ainypuadx3
aebyw 0} 91/51.02 Ui paubiieal aq o} s1abpng jodaq| 1odag 1weyy je uoisircud Ainoag / wuely Jo 1509 Alunoag IMO WBIUY 6500 6500 866'L 6E6°L ABajeng @ ssauisng
“Jeak |e1oueUl aY) Ul J9)e| pajedo)e
a1am S19BpNQg 9[01YaA 3DIAIDS [BUOIIPPY "G L/PL0Z Ul SISOD [Bn)
{e10} patoeloid 10y (Ai@1e10d100 piaY Ajuaund wy/ |03 Jo 196png jej0))
wQg|"03 4O UOHEUI PiEpUE]S LON JOj UOIEDO|[E BY) SapN|oul WNRNQ|(0£0°0) (0€0°0) [44°04 LSy S82IABG 19914
‘wgy0'03 0 aJnypuadxa ul uoonpal e ui Buginsa: sinoy
+Z UIYIIM PaIBajO SEM JBY} [[BJMOUS U0 AJUO SEM 313U} PUB MOUS
10 Yoam auo 1o} uoisiacid sayew 1a6png asueuaulely Jajuip AU L [(840°0) (8%0°0) 1560 6660 aouBUSIUIBIN JSJUIA
‘pally 3q [jm Ss)sod Yy} 3SIMIBUO ‘SSISUBDBA 'S]S02 aouBUA BN
anowal [m g1/6102 slesodoid Buluueld ssauisng 8[2IY3A P3JIH PUB [aUU0SIad Aouaby ‘aWiuaA0 JO S)S09 [BUOIPPY (09070 0900 SLZ'L SGL'L shemybiH
"WIGN0 03 JO PayUapl SEJUBLEA JOUIW JAUYIO
‘1088 Jeak ||n} Jo} ‘Buisealiou) suuo)
126pnqg 91/G10¢Z 10} paMwqgns piq ainssald 1abpng|Jad 1s09 ay) 0} anp woso 03 JO jesodsip )SEAL POO4 JO 1S0D paseaiou]
‘WYg0' 03 JO PUadsISAC UE Ul PaYNSsal
"Pa|Il a9 [Im sisod ay) asimIayio ‘saoueodeA uoisinoid aoiAlas AIBSSa03U BY) UBJUIBWU 0) SSIDUBDEA JO Jaquinu uono3(|0D ASEA
anowsal M 91/G10z siesodoud Buuueld ssauisng| ybiy o) anp [guuosiad Aousby Jo 8sn pue SWILBAC JO S)S02 [eUONIPPY| LY L 0 R AN 861 Yl g |esodsiq a1sepm
uopeodsues]
P BUIDSIPING
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Z1 Yiuoiy 18bpng
b
painbay uonoy aosuepuep Jolep jo asne) souelEA asueuep | wnpno DesIAGY ERITNETS

¢ Xipuaddy

AYVAINNS - NHNLLNO

S9DUBLIBA puNj |10UN0Y)

BUTIONUOVY 195PNg

Page 59



juswucIAUg

(ovz'0) |(vzz'o) |ozy's vv9's 8 Buiuued jejoL
S30UBLBA
£00°0 £00°0 G650 2650 Jayio Jo sjebalbby
yied abejusy
(1000) _|(1000) [8820 682°0 g A3)[EA PlYUIaID
"91/510Z W s|lejuoys Buipuny juelb
ajebijiw 0) piemioy patlied 1oy Juawabeuel Jsje A\ POO|4 Jo) Bwodul| LE00 LE0°0 oLLD 6200 abeureiq
(uoneisuag
Ayouyos|g
pue sayis (ypueT
‘91/5102 404 su |enuajod ‘51500 |ejuay Juawdinb3 pue asueusjuiep 9 paso|o Buipnfour)
e s saulbu] se9) .o} sjaaa)| uonesaualb awoou)|siieday Buonpal ul [nyssasons usaq sey Buuoyuow |eniooe/abualieyd |(y20°0) ($20°0) (500°0) 690°0 saoinag Abiaug
'91/510g Ul sapuapiya Buluueld ssauisng ‘gjep 0} sbuines yejs Jo aAisnjoul 3oUBWIOPDY B
SpJemo) pasn aq [JIm SIIDUBIBA asay) JO aWoS uonejuswaldwi sniels ajbuig Buimoljoy pajedojie 1@6png Aouedea |(990°0) (990°0) €050 6950 voddng yuswabeuepy
“winyno [euy Je suswsnipe Jouln|{£200)  [(5100)  [eese ¥55C uonoajold a1and
'91/510¢ 104 siesodoid Buiuueld ssauisng
yym aulj Ul paseassul Jobpnq awoou; sa4 buluueid *S|2A3| awooul 884 Buiuue|d ui uonanpal Jouin|(z1 1 0) (zo1'0) 06S°L 6L Buluue|q
juswuodiaug
w Bujuue|d
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Z1 Yuop jabpng
n
pasinbay uonoy aoueueA Jofe jo asnen souewe esueuepn | wnpno pesiey ERITNE TS

Z Xipuaddy

AYVINAINS - NYNLLNO

Sa0uUBlieA puny JOUNocY

BUGNUGH 196PNg

Page 60



yInoA
8.0°0 6.0°0 yeT'L6 GSL°L6 ® uopeanpy [ejo)
uoneulou
"MaIABI 0] anuUnuo) "aouene JoulN|((820°0) (£20°0) 910 ¥61°0 swabeuep |0oyog
‘SaouelEA Joulw Jauylo snid ‘suonduosqgns jo ayeidn jo Buiuaybi aoueulopad
‘M3IA3I 0} SNUKUOD) ‘IS |00YIS Ym pajeoosse sjsod [eba) jeusaixa ul uolonpay |(990°0) (990°0) 2120 €820 ¥ Buluoissiwwo)
"MBIAB) 0} anujuo) "9oueLIeA JOUIN[(020°0) {0z0'0) sl il S90IABS UINOA
'G10Z 24 Y21 18uiqed Aq paaibe sem yoiym ‘Buipaasosd
Jabuo| ou st awayas siyJ -swwelboid jooyag Aumua) 1512 8Y) UIyIm
awsyos yuawaoeidal jooyss ybiH ssawwng uyor ay) jsuiebe paunou)
Apealje aunypuadxa pue sabieyd Jixa yoenuod |euy ay) syuasasdal siyl (6210 6410 9920 /800 sjooyss Aunuan i1s|.z
*S|EAJN |00YDS 9314 Jo) puewap ay} ul pue sdu] |ooYss (uoisinold g Buluuelq
*MBIABI 0} BNUNUOD 10 1509 8y} ul aseasou] dieys e Aq pasned usaq sey adueueA ay] [020°0 0200 6420 6020 |00y2g) §S220y
‘puadsiapun ||BIaA0 Ue Ul paynsal sey pua-ieak Je Bumo sjuswAied
a)iped-i4 Jo Juawdnooas pasealou| ‘Auenuer Buunp pasieal ajam
wy/ 1003 Jo sBuines Buiyels "wge0 03 JO IS0 JByNNy B pajealo sjual|o
Z joyoddns | 0} | U] 8sealdsul ue SIy} O} uonIppe U] “1aquaaoN Buunp
paAiadal atam Juswadseyd Buibiaws ue pue sjuswaoeld mau g 1ebpng
‘91/G10Z Ui malaal 0} ahujuo) SiUy) pajoaye Aj@ssaape 12qojoQ Ul sjuswadeld AJunod Jo I mau Z{(#£0°0) {y£0°0) 680°€l el el S3JIAISG UaIsSnjau|
uoneanp3 Buinunuo)
"M3IA3) 0) anujuo) "saoueueA Jouln|(1z0'0) {120'0) ££6°9¢ ¥G6°9€ 2 61- ¥1 ‘Alepuodag
uoneosnp sieaA
"Mi{AB) 0} BNURUOD ‘saoueuen Jouln{(zoo'0)  1(2000)  [Lee vy CEE VY Auez g Aewud
YInoA g uoyeonpy
(w3) (w3z) (w3z) (w3)
2l yuop jabpng
paJsinbay uonoy asueuen Jolep jo asne) soueLEA asueuep | wnpnQ pesiney 99IAI9g

AIVNWINS - NINLLNO

S3dUeNeA puny [I9UNCY)
Z Xipuaddy BULGYLOW 195pNg

Page 61



€0L°0 L0L°0 687’8 98¢€°'8 3IUBLIBAOY [B10 )
‘W L0°03F 40 Spuadsiapun Joujw 0} anp S| aduejeq 8yl ‘w0z 03
jo sbBuines Aoueoea Aq jesyo bBuleq sse sIs0d 8sayj ‘WEOZ 03
"Aluo|jo syso) Aouaby Jo 1s0o ayy pue wgeQ 03 Joy 18bpng aszemyos ay)
Jeak-Ul S| MaIA3) JPBIO 3y} 0) anp ainssaid ay] |uo ainssaid e ‘WO 03 JO MBIARI SUBIIT BJJRIQ 0} NP SI puadsian0|890°0 1900 (Ner Al 8Lt 191
swabeuepy
‘JualINsal aq o) pajoadxa Jou s| puadsiaIsAn ‘SaouBUBA JOUIN| /2100 2100 G8L°0 891°0 splooay
‘Juandal aq o) pajoadxa jou s) puadsiapun ‘'saoueleA JOulnN|{Sz0o 0) (5z20°0) 0690 IWA] saoinuag poddng
adueueA ON|000°0 0000 6120 6120 juswiainoold
"Jua.ndaJ 8q 0} Pajoadxa Jou S| puadsiapun ‘saoueneA JOUN[(£10°0) (£100) G8E0 20v°0 JIpNy [eusiu|
*SOUBMEBA JOUIW O} anp aJe wgLQ 03 Jo spuadsiapun
Jauulg s,ueuliey) ay} uo wgl0'03 Jo puadsispun ue pue Ja)sibal
|[eio)o9j@ ayy Joj awoou) Buipiebal wgQo 03 JO JUSWIBABIYIE JBAO
1ebpnq Buuiely sJequaw ay} uo wQZO 03 Jo puadsispun ue ‘sisod
U123l aq 0} pajoadxa Jou si puadsiapun fbuisseaued uo wy/ 003 J0 puadsiapun ue o) anp S| ddueueA ayl [(520°0) (520°0) 068°L G96°L S92IAIBS JNeId0Wa(]
“Jeak |ejoueuy siy 104 1s09 Buuinoal ‘W00 0F JO SSOUBLEA JOUIW JBY)0 0) anp puadsianp
-uou JJjo-auo e s| sabieyo pue| punose uonebn|-sabieyo pue| |eso] punose uonebiy] oy snp ainssaid wEL0F|SELO PEL0 698°0 Gel0 s901n9G [BBan
IJUBULIBA0YD
$32IN0SAY
(620°0) (0£0°0) 666V 620'S '® ajdoad |ejoL
"JuauINdal 8q 0} Pajoadxa jou si puadsiapun ‘saoueuep Jouln |(520°0) (820°0) ¥8¢°2 e aoueul{ ajesodio)
JuauIngal aq 0} pajoadxa Jou si puadsiapun "saoueueA JoulN|(y00°0) {200°0) S19¢ L197¢ aoeydH
S$324n0S3)Y 'g 3jdoad
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Z) Yuoly 18bpng
pasinbay uoyoy asueuep Jofey jo asne) soUBLIEA asueuep | wnpno pesiey IV ETS

¢ Xipuaddy

AHVIANNNS - NdINLLNO

SaoUuelEA punj [1DUN0Y

BULGHUOY 1o6pNg

Page 62



abuey)
{so1L-0) [{svL0) |8LL8 £26'8 feuopesiuebio jg101
‘sjooyos Buluiewss o) Ino nojjol1 ayy
aNUUOD 0} 9|°G| O} JaAO|jos 0) pa)sanbal WeED 03
J0 @duejeq JuauNd ‘Wego 03 JO ¥ gL Joy Buipuny ‘puadsiapun Jau Sy} Uy paynsal sey sjeaul
paaiby - sjeaw |0oy2s 10j JuawAed auluo g B10|jooyos Ul siaquinu paseasdsul 3y} Wwolj 12Bpng saoqe awooul jeuonippy |(Z60°0) (£60°0) $52°1 v8L S92IAIRG Sal|1oed
"M3JAR) 0) BNUNRUOY "aoueueA JOuiN(0L00 LEO0'0 (080°0) (160°0) seoag buussuibug
‘Wye0’03 puadsiapun ||Bian0
0} BunqLIuoD SaouBLBA JouIW JaYIQ "WEEO 03 SASAING [BUONIPUOD
10 Joadsal ul aunypuadxa paonpay “wW/y0 03 Jo Buuoyuow solsagsy
pue ejjauobia] uo puadsiapun 186pnq Japun w/EH 03 Ul BWod Aoueynsuo)
‘ainssaid Buunoal uou e si sy 9ABY S]S00 N 9 Y "WILED 0F JO S}oBUU0) aysiull{ uo puadsiapun|(zg8l o) (281°0) FAWA ¥68°1 » ubisag Aadold
._umuma_o_acm uey} ‘_mr_m_: 3JaM )led ssauisng pisljusals)
uo sangin spun baEw JO Jaqwinu e JO JINsal B Se pasealdul sey
‘ainssaid m:_t:ow‘_ elousisiyl| HANN ._umuma_o_ucm ueyj Jamo| uaaqg sey sajis JO Jaquinu e uo swodu|| el 0 lE1°0 Amvw,ov Aomm.ov $3)els3 R uoljenjeA
“aoueueA Jouln ((200°0)  [(£00°0)  [¥S0°0 1900 sjessy Ayunwwo)
‘M3IA8J 0} BNuUNUo) ‘aoueleA JOUIN|0LO0 0100 /86°E 116°E S92IAI9S aInsiaT
"MBJAB) 0} BNUNUOY "aoueueA Jouln|(600'0)  [(600°0)  [¥P20 £52°0 saAlyaly Aunog
*MaIA3) O} anuiuoy ‘aoueue Jouln| 1000 1000 €900 2900 82IAJBS swnasnpy
Sjuang
R 2Inin) ‘suy
"MBIABI 0) BNUUOYD ‘aoueneA Jouln[(ec0'0)  [(eco0) (2981 006'L '® saueiqi] algnd
abueyn jeuonesiuebio
(w3z) (w3) (w3) (wr3)
2l yjuoy j19bpng
pannbay uoyoy asueue Jofey jo asned BouBLEA aoueMeA |  wnpng posiAoy 9oIAI0S

AHYVAWNS - NYINLLNO

SS5UBHEA puny [IPUNOY)

Z XIpusady BUNGHUOH 1obpng

Page 63



‘WL 003 JO spuadsiapun Joulw Jauyi0 "WQSL 03 JO suoyonpap

aYUIS "WQPZ 03 10 UOHEJUI JO UOHEO|ie UO puadsiapun WLy 03

4O BUI0DUI |{RJPUIAN [BUORIPPY WIDEY"03 JO SeouaIoys Jabpng

10-8u0 payuap| “uonodafold ay) papualue sey Uo)oaS pun4 uoisuad
PAM[D N0 WIOJ) PIAIRORS UOJBLLIOMI PUB ‘Uo)NqLIU0D saakoldwg
pasesJoul 0} anp WEE L'03F Ag paonpal suopnguuo) pun4 UoIsusd
Wy 03 40 1 Jauenp) ul abieyoay SIaU0I0D PASEIIU|

"Jeak Ul pamalaal usa( SeY SJaSSE papuny sjooyos

AINuao }s1Z Uo JY |euonelado swooaq S}asse ay) Jaye Jesk ay)
sulbaq pue jasse ay} Jo 8yl au} JaAo pealds st Buimosniog |eguspnid
Aq papuny sjasse uo 44N ‘souepinb y4d|D yim asuepiodoe

Ul pamalaal uasq sey Aoljod Bupunooase gy sluswalinbas Buimouioq
pUB SaAIaSaJ 21NNy JO |9A3| BY) pue awwelboud Juswysaaul aunny

J0 Joedw SB YoNSs s10joe) Auew Aq pajoaje aq Ued Siy) ‘JOASMOH aoueulq
MIINDY Jopun daay ‘WEZ9°03F 40 puadsiapun pus Jeak JusWw)saAul pue sueot jenuad (e L) (ovL'L) Gllve GlL6'62 ajerodio) B (BAUS)D
@ouelly
ajesodion g jenuan
{ov0°0) (0%0°0) LLL'E 1S1°¢ SaAlRN2axX3 JIy) [B10)
"Jud.IN%31 8q 0} pajoadxa Jou s puadsiapuf) ‘saoueue Joulln [{0v0°0) (0v0°0) LLLE 1G1°¢ SaAIN29XT JaIyD
SaARNI9XY JaIY)
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
ZL Yuop 1ebpng
paiinbay uopoy asueuep Jofep Jo asne) souBLen aoueueA | wnpno pesiaey LTV TS

Z XIpuaddy

AHVANNS - NHNLLNO

SSOUBLEA puUn; [Iounon
Buuoyuop 196png

Page 64



(650'2)

{r08°L)

¢LEEST

9LL'SST

Iv1iol

{speL)

{ovLL)

SLLYVT

§16°S¢

asueuld ajelodiod
9 |enua) |eoL

‘Bunopuow Ajyyuow Buiob-uQ

"W E€0°03 Jo S}s02 aseg uonesadQ 'Wige 03

jo sabieyoay sao1n19g Hoddng ul JuswaAsiyoeISpUN UY “|esodsip ays
pue ainso|o ysu ay} jo Ayjigel| Ajlenualod Joy uoisinoid sapnjoul mou
yaiym youokpues je ajis psueydo ay) o} uoneal ul WZeg L3 0 1s0D

‘We /03 O SIS0D JUBLWISaAL|
uo puadsiapun ue Ag )asyo Ajued S| S3|oU3I01S SANEASIUILPY

BU} JO JUBLIBASIYDE JAPUN BU| "MBIADI 3DIOPJOM JBYUN) pue
suoneoydde Aouepunpay Aieyunjop ybnoiyy passiyoe aq o} psjedionue
aJe sa0uajoY)a ainny Yybnoy) saj01 SANBISIUILPY JO MBIABI BY)

10} WGLQ' L3 JO JUBLLIBABIYORIBPUN L. Y)M JBYIabo) L/ | Ul W068 03
O JUSWIDABILDBIDAO UB ]031j91 MOU PAARIYDOE S3IOUSIDIYD SDIOPUOAA
"wz90°03 JO Sa9) Jipne uo sbuiaes Jeak-ul |euolIppY "S99) Jipne
JeOLIOISIY O} UONE[3] Ul PAAIRJa) US3q SBY WZ/0'0F JO SlBqal JJo-auo v

{panunuod) asueul
ajesodio) g |BAU3)

pasinbay uoyoy

asueueA Jofely jo asnen

(w3)
2l Yiuoly
aoueueA

(w3)

9oUBLIEA

(w3)
wnpno

(w3)
18bpng
pesjaey

ELITNEY

AUVINAINS - NdNLLNO

S83UENeA puny IoUnNcy)
BuLGNUOW 19bpng

Page 65



Page 66



€ XIpuaday

] €900

lejo.|

"‘aAIasal BU) Wol) papuny usaq sey (Aepy
% 1dy) uoneyuawa|dwi snieys a|buis o) anp Aejap ayL

Juepuadap ssem ADUBIDIYa SIU) JO JuaWwaAaIyde By |

-Ainr (nun pajsjep aq jou pinod sjsod jey) Jueaw siy] [£z00 ‘sjuawabuelle J9A0D pue sejol o} sabuey) - ainsia | 8buey) |euopesiuebio
‘AINF (nUn pajuawajdll Jou SBMm MBIASY oIS
ay) asneoaq ajqensiyoe sem Aouaiolye ay} Jo UIZL/L
1.0 |unf o)ul pake|ap Ajjiqixays 9o1A19S asealoul
SEM Uolym snje)g ajbuig Jo uonejuswsaidwi ayy uo (000 0] S}oeAUOY JuBWAC|dWT MBINSY - SIOBHUOD uoljeyodsuel] 1R auaos}aalls

JawAoidw3 - uoijepodsuel | R 8UddS)9BIIS

paaaiyose Buiaq Jou Aoua1o1ya 10) uoSEdY

(w3) panayoe

Jou Aousis uonduasaq Asualonyyg oljojod
lyvd
NI 319VAIIHOV ADN3IDI443
fzoLL | | 1ejoL)
c e passaippe Uoad srl serous solomion. |510 ABojouyoa) porodu soueuL3 sreiodion § e
pue p PP q 8ney Sarousloly P sL0°t JO )INsal e se $955800.d / S9|01 UIWPY (B 4O MBIADY 49 33 [BA4UeD
paasiyoeun | 38bpng 91/510z au) Jo Wed sy
'PBASILIE JOU seM ASUSIOS SIL : 10J4 4] 0} syes) Auenjs3 Jo Uoeoold S32IAIBS [BID0
Jesw sey syei) Aren)s3 Jo uoilesojal ay) ul sAejeq ve0'0 PPI0j 11 0} SYeI 1534 Heaoiey IS |E0S
‘pajeoeA uaaq 194 Jou aaey sasiwald asay] "ppiojd (€100 selousioy3 semunpoddQ Aeq - semigesig Buluiean S30IABS [BI00S
1] e sasiwaid Buneoea uo paseq sem Aouaioiye SIYL
108loid ‘qnH peoy Junig
ay} pajlels sey suswabueue juswabeueyy peoy  |050°0 S9JEAA IN 24} YIM JUSLLISAJOAUL WIOLS Jijauaq {e1oueul uoneyodsuel] g suads)aalng
3uni] 8y} Jo 81NNy ay) :aJ JUSWSIUNCULUE [EUB)SIUIN UOIBIO0SSY PROY Yuni] Sa[eApA YLON - 9uadsiaalls
(w3) pansiyoe
paaaiyoe Huiaq jou Aouaid1yJd 10} UOSBIY Jou Aousiowg uonduasaq Asuaioyyg oljojiod

3T8VAIIHOV LON AON3IOI1d43

R
BULIOTUOH 1o06pNng

Page 67



Page 68



APPENDIX 4

Movements on Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves

Total Reserves as at 1 April 2014

Less - Base Level (inclusive of reduction of
£0.065m agreed as part of the 2014/15
budget)

Total Reserves above base level

Less — estimate required from the amount
approved as part of Investment strategy as
per budget 2014/15 report

Add — Contribution from investment costs for
termination benefits accounted for in
2013/14

Less - Amount approved under delegated
powers reported in July 2014 monitoring
report

Amount available for delegation to Cabinet

Add projected underspend as at Outturn

Total projected Contingency Reserve as
at 31t March 2015

Page 69

£m £m

11.161

(5.769)

5.392

(2.500)

0.745

(0.696)

2.941

1.804

4,745



Page 70



690°0

{s¥e0)

(41 %)

L6¥°0

T eyol

wog | 03 abieyoal

aoines poddns ui uononNpayY ‘Wezy0 03
10 sBulAes apew sasueINsSUj Yy H
"WGEQ 03 Aouepunpay

R UOISUB ‘WES | 03 0} Junowe
2JEM)JOS 10} SBouUR|eq pJemo) Auen

€100

(92v°0)

9rvl

2s8vl

(o1eb62.1668)
Sa2UBLBA 18I0

‘WO60°03 VHIN Ul jlejuoys

weoQ 03 BunesH |eunwwon

wos 03 ded

180 syBioH ajise) Joj SIS0 uoowsq

€0€0

€0€°0

¥88°9

1869

vy430

*JedA ay) JO Japulewal 8y} 10}
1sod ayy puny 0} pasn aq ||m 196png siL
0} pajinioal ale sisod aouQ “pajjy Buiaq

124 J0u s)sod 0} anp sbuiaes Aoueoep

(£52°0)

(262°0)

0000

1520

sbuineg Aoueoep

"Jebpnq

uey) ajow wgeo 03 buieq wnyno sieak
ise| je Jsesaloy 08 syIi/sBulping vyH
[esouab uo s)soo asueusiulep B sireday
*MBIABI BOIAISS BU) O} aNp WSSO 03 Aq
asl 0} pajoadxa ale S}S0D aJIAISS Uapies)

990°0

100

1060

0£8'0

Sa0IAleg plojpuen]

W9B0'03

40 awoou| paonpal e ul Bugnsal
2J0J9J8Y]} 'Sjueud) Aq peousliadxs senss|
JUNODOE 0} Ul 9.} 0} PAPUSLUE JORJJUOD
pue pamainsl Usaq Sey 8dIAI8S uapIen)

FA42Y

FA4%Y

(£95°0)

(F1L2°0)

alooU| |eJsusn)

‘9 SYdH

paonpal ue ul Bunnsal alo@Jay] “Jalies
syjwe | Bumes 1ebpnq je pauodal ueyy
Jamoj si Juswajd [ejided ay) Jey} sayiuapl
uoissiwgns Apisgns Jo uolenae)

(681°0)

(691°0)

SEC9

y0¥'9

Apisang

{£10°0)

(#10°0)

(122°12)

(€12°22)

sjuey

pasinbay uopoy

aJuBlEA JO 8snen

(w3)
21 Yjuoy
saueuEA

(w3)
winyno
aoueLEA

(w3)
wnpno
pajosfoid

(w3)
196png
pasiAay

89IAIBS

§ xjpusddy

wninQ - YHoday aosueueA Jole VHH

Page 71



Page 72



APPENDIX B

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 14 JULY 2015

REPORT BY: CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER

SUBJECT: CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2014/15 (OUTTURN)

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To provide Members with the outturn capital programme information for 2014/15.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The Council approved a Housing Revenue Account (HRA) capital programme for
2014/15 of £12.106m and a Council Fund (CF) capital programme of £20.970m at
its meeting of 18" February 2014.

2.02 For presentational purposes the capital programme is shown as a whole, with sub
totals for Council Fund and HRA. In reality the HRA programme is ring-fenced and
can only be used for HRA purposes.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01 Programme - Changes since Budget approval

3.01.1  The table below sets out how the programme has changed during 2014/15.

Detailed cumulative information relating to each programme area is provided in
Appendix A, and summarised below:-

REVISED PROGRAMME Original | Rollover | Changes | Changes- | Rollover | Savings | Revised
Budget from (Previous) This to Budget
2014/15 2013/14 Period 2015/16 2014/15
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Chief Executives 0.015 0.007 0 0 (0.006) 0 0.018
People & Resources 0.075 0.086 (0.013) (0.002) 0 (0.060) 0.086
Gowvernance 0.795 0.935 0 0.008 (0.445) 0 1.293
Education & Youth 9.228 2212 (0.291) 0.056 (1.087) (0.018) 10.100
Social Care 0 0 0.642 0 0 0 0.642
Community & Enterprise 2.848 2.654 2.747 0.277 (0.513) 0 8.013
Planning & Environment 1.709 0.923 (0.819) 0.625 (0.507) 0 1.931
Transport & Streetscene 5.345 0.578 0.911 0.325 (0.089) 0 7.070
Organisational Change 1 0 0.038 0.015 0.367 (0.033) 0 0.387
Organisational Change 2 0.955 0.301 0.025 0.134 0 0 1.415
Council Fund Total 20.970 7.734 3.217 1.790 (2.680) (0.078) 30.953
Housing Revenue Account 12.106 0.000 0.325 0.075 0.000 0.000 12.506
Programme Total 33.076 7.734 3.542 1.865 (2.680) (0.078) 43.459

Page 73



3.02

3.02.1

3.02.2

3.02.3

3.03

3.03.1

3.03.2

Rollover from 2013/14

Rollover occurs when schemes due to be completed in a given financial year are
delayed, possibly due to procurement issues/weather or if funding from external
sources is altered e.g. rephasing of Welsh Government (WG) grants and are
therefore not completed until the following year.

Revised rollover sums of £5.830m were agreed in year as part of the quarterly
reports to Cabinet and of £1.904m as part of the outturn report to Cabinet on 15"
July, 2014, giving a total rollover amount of £7.734m.

For rollover into 2015/16 see Section 3.05.

Changes during this period

Changes during this period have resulted in a net increase in the programme total

of £1.865m (CF £1.790m, HRA £0.075m). A summary of the changes, showing
major items, is shown in the table below -

CHANGES DURING THIS PERIOD
£m
COUNCIL FUND
Increases
Town Centre Regeneration - Introduction of Grant Funding 0.523
Engineering - Introduction of Grant Funding 0.509
Play Areas - Introduction of Funding 0.361
Highways - Introduction of Grant Funding 0.334
Sustainable Waste Mgt - Introduction of Grant Funding 0.315
Other Aggregate Increases 0.360
2.402
Decreases
Transportation - Reduced Need for Grant Funding (0.307)
Private Sector Renewal - Reduced Need for Grant Funding (0.246)
Other Aggregate Decreases (0.059)
(0.612)
Total 1.790
£m
HRA
Increases
Other Aggregate Increases 0.103
0.103
Decreases
Other Aggregate Decreases (0.028)
(0.028)
Total 0.075

At outturn, in Capital Programme monitoring, changes need to be made to ensure
budgets are aligned to actual expenditure and the relevant funding source. This is
the case with the vast majority of the movements above.

Page 74



3.03.3

3.03.4

3.03.5

3.04

3.04.1

In some instances available grant funding has been introduced to meet expenditure
in preference to general funding which has been identified as needing to be rolled
forward into 2015/16 (if approved) to meet future committed expenditure. This is
necessary as there are more restrictions associated with grant funding

Within the HRA there are similar adjustments which have led to a small increase in
the overall programme.

Within People and Resources is a centrally held provision for urgent Health and
Safety issues. These funds are reallocated to relevant programme areas as they
are requested and approved. Minor reallocations of £0.002m have taken place this
quarter.

Capital Expenditure compared to Budget

Outturn expenditure across the whole of the programme is £40.372m. The
breakdown of expenditure is analysed in the following table, along with the
percentage spend against budget. This shows that 92.90% of the budget has been
spent across the programme (CF 91.68% and HRA 95.90%). Corresponding
outturn figures for 2013/14 were 95.23% (CF 92.95% and HRA 100%). Given the
size and complexity of schemes within the programme this is considered an
appropriate level of spend against budget, and poses no risk or negative impact for
the Council e.g. loss of funding.

EXPENDITURE Revised Outturn Variance Percentage

Budget Budget v Spend v

Outturn Budget

(Under)/Over
£m £m £m %

Chief Executives 0.016 0.016 0 100.00
People & Resources 0.086 0 0.086 0.00
Gowernance 1.293 0.985 0.308 76.18
Education & Youth 10.100 9.245 0.855 91.53
Social Care 0.642 0.642 0 100.00
Community & Enterprise 8.013 7.669 0.344 95.71
Planning & Environment 1.931 1.291 0.640 66.86
Transport & Streetscene 7.070 7.055 0.015 99.79
Organisational Change 1 0.387 0.378 0.009 97.67
Organisational Change 2 1.415 1.097 0.318 77.53
Council Fund Total 30.953 28.378 2.575 91.68
Housing Revenue Account 12.506 11.994 0.512 95.90
Programme Total 43.459 40.372 3.087 92.90

3.04.2 Details of the variances for individual programme areas are listed in Appendix B,

which includes the reasons, and the required remedial action, where those
variances exceed 10% of the budget. In addition, where rollover into 2015/16 has
been identified, this is also included in the narrative.

Page 75



3.05

3.05.1

3.06.2

3.06.3

3.05.4

3.05.5

Rollover into 2015/16

During the quarter further rollover of £3.087m (Council Fund £2.575m and HRA
£0.512m) has been identified which reflects reviewed spending plans across all
programme areas, these committed amounts have been identified as now required
to meet the cost of programme works in 2015/16.

Information relating to each programme area is contained in Appendix B and
summarised in the table below along with rollover previously approved:-

ROLLOVER INTO 2015/16 Month 4 Month 6 Month 9 Reversed Outturn Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Chief Executives 0.006 0.006
People & Resources 0.086 0.086
Govemance 0.065 0.380 0.308 0.753
Education & Youth 0.026 1.015 0.064 (0.018) 0.855 1.942
Community & Enterprise 0.115 1.560 (1.162) 0.344 0.857
Planning & Environment 0.135 0.204 0.182 (0.014) 0.640 1.147
Transport & Streetscene 0.089 0.015 0.104
Organisational Change 1 0.033 0.009 0.042
Organisational Change 2 0.318 0.318
Council Fund 0.276 1.373 2.225 (1.194) 2.575 4.937
Housing Revenue Account 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.512 0.512
Programme Total 0.276 1.373 2.225 (1.194) 3.087 5.449

Rollover has been requested to fund; schemes where retentions are payable in the
new financial year, schemes that span more than 1 financial year, and schemes
that have experienced delays for a variety of reasons where the Council is
contractually committed to the scheme.

In some circumstances amounts which have previously been identified as EIR are
reversed as it becomes clear that the expenditure is going to be incurred in the
current financial year. These are shown in the column ‘Reversed’ above.

If the outturn rollover is approved, this will take the total rollover into 2015/16 to

£5.449m. This is below the £7.734m rolled over from 2013/14 into 2014/15 and is
a result of the continued scrutiny of the programme by both Officers and Members.

Page 76



3.06

3.06.1 Savings of £0.078m have been identified in the current year as per the table below.
IDENTIFIED SAVINGS
Savings
£m
Corporate Finance (0.060)
Education & Youth (0.018)
Total (0.078)
3.07 Financing
3.07.1 The capital programme is financed as summarised below:-
FINANCING RESOURCES General Specific Total
Financing' Financing? Financing
£m £m £m
Latest Monitoring
Council Fund 10.341 20612 30.953
Housing Revenue Account 5.435 7.071 12.506
15.776 27.683 43.459
Total Financing Resources 15.776 27.683 43.459

Savings

Prudential & Other Borrowing

1 Supported Borrowing / General Capital Grant / Capital Receipts / Major Repairs Allowance
2 Grants & Contributions / Capital Expenditure charged to Revenue Account / Reserves /

3.07.2 That element of the Council Fund total financed from general (non-specific)
financing resources, relies in part on the generation of capital receipts from asset
disposals. The continuing harsh economic climate has impacted on the Council's
ability to achieve the budgeted level of anticipated capital receipts, a situation that
has been ongoing for some years and will continue until the economy picks up at
some future point. The capital receipts situation has been closely monitored and
reported as part of overall capital monitoring arrangements.

Page 77



3.07.3

3.07.4

3.07.5

3.07.6

The overall position for 2014/15 (including the capital receipts impact) is
summarised below:-

FUNDING OF APPROVED SCHEMES

£m £m
Shortfall from 2013/14 1.578
Increases
Receipts to fund 2014/15 budgetted expenditure 0.488
Pressures (Previously Reported) 0.030 0.518
Decreases
Actual In year receipts (3.337)
Savings (Previously Reported) (0.078)
Unallocated Headroom (0.003) (3.418)
Projected shortfall / (surplus) to 2015/16 (1.322)

The shortfall of funding for schemes approved at the end of 2013/14 brought
forward into 2014/15 was £1.578m. Capital receipts generated in year totalled
£3.337m, which together with some minor adjustments combines to a total surplus
in 2014/15 of £1.322m. The final outturn figure will not be confirmed until the
conclusion of the final accounts process and will be reported in the 2015/16 Month
4 Capital Monitoring report.

The surplus outturn position has improved from that reported at Month 9, when a
small surplus of £0.090m was projected. The difference is due to the completion
of the sale of 2 large assets at the very end of the financial year as opposed to
2015/16 (which is what had been anticipated in the Month 9 report).

The situation regarding disposals remains fluid in this economic climate and hence
it is difficult to predict with certainty when disposals will be delivered. It is therefore
suggested that the Council continues to monitor the disposals programme closely
and will bring further updates to Cabinet in future capital monitoring reports.

Moving forward the surplus at outturn of £1.322m, combined with the unallocated
funding of £0.333m in setting the 2015/16 capital programme, totals £1.655m of
capital funding available to fund the demands of the overall ongoing capital
programme. Portfolios through their business plans have identified significant
capital investment needed to improve services and to achieve revenue efficiencies.
Business cases are in the process of being written to bring additional capital
schemes to Cabinet for approval into the 2015/16 and/or future Capital
Programmes.

Page 78



4.00 RECOMMENDATIONS

4.01 Cabinet is requested to:-
e Approve the report.

e Approve the rollover adjustments in 3.05.2.

5.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.01 As set out in Sections 2 and 3 of the report.

6.00 ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

6.01 None as a direct result of this report.

7.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

7.01 Many of the schemes in the programme are designed to improve the environment,
infrastructure and assets of the Authority.

8.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT

8.01 None as a direct result of this report.

9.00 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

9.01 None as a direct result of this report.

10.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED

10.01  None as a direct result of this report.

11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

11.01  None as a direct result of this report.

12.00 APPENDICES

12.01  Appendix A : Capital Programme - Changes During 2014/15
Appendix B : Variances

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Capital Programme Monitoring Papers 2014/15.

Contact Officer: Liz Thomas

Finance Manager - Technical Accounting
Telephone: 01352 702289
E-mail: liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 79



Page 80



APPENDIX A

CAPITAL PROGRAMME - CHANGES DURING 2014/15

Original | Rollover | Changes | Changes | Rollover | Savings | Revised
Budget from |(Previous)| (Current) to Budget
2014/15 1 2013/14 2015/16 2014/15
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Council Fund :
Chief Executives
Clwyd Theatr Cymru 0.015 0.007 0 0 (0.006) 0 0.016
0.015 0.007 0.000 0.000 (0.006) 0.000 0.016
People & Resources
Corporate Finance 0.075 0.086 (0.013) (0.002) 0 (0.060) 0.086
0.075 0.086 (0.013) (0.002) 0.000 (0.060) 0.086
Governance
Information Technology 0.795 0.935 0.000 0.008 (0.445) 0.000 1.293
0.795 0.935 0.000 0.008 (0.445) 0.000 1.293
Education & Youth
Education - General 2.081 0 (1.801) 0.011 0 0 0.291
Primary Schools 0.040 0.278 1.547 (0.002) (0.021) (0.018) 1.824
Schools Modernisation 7.062 0.665 (0.323) 0.085 (0.940) 0 6.549
Secondary Schools 0 0.314 0.401 (0.038) (0.054) 0 0.623
Special Education 0 0.955 (0.115) 0 (0.072) 0 0.768
Minor Works, Furn & Equip 0.045 0 0 0 0 0 0.045
9.228 2.212 (0.291) 0.056 (1.087) (0.018) 10.100
Social Care
Partnerships & Performance 0 0 0.642 0 0 0 0.642
0.000 0.000 0.642 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.642
Community & Enterprise
Private Sector Renewal/lmprovement 2.311 0.469 1.267 (0.246) 0 0 3.801
Travellers' Sites 0.150 0 (0.150) 0 0 0 0.000
Flintshire Connects 0.250 0.507 0.041 0 (0.398) 0 0.400
Town Centre Regeneration 0.137 1.676 (0.036) 0.523 (0.115) 0 2185
Vibrant & Viable Places 0 0 1.625 0 0 0 1.625
Community Centres 0 0.002 0 0 0 0 0.002
2.848 2.654 2,747 0.277 (0.513) 0.000 8.013
Planning & Environment
Ranger Services 0.135 0.239 0.020 0 (0.279) 0 0.115
Energy Services 0.200 0 0.107 0.116 0 0 0.423
Engineering 1.065 0.591 (0.950) 0.509 (0.102) 0 1.113
Planning Grant Schemes 0 0 0.004 0 0 0 0.004
Townscape Heritage Initiatives 0.309 0.093 0 0 (0.126) 0 0.276
1.709 | 0,23 | o 4 (0.819) 0.625 (0.507) 0.000 1.931
I agc Ul




APPENDIX A (Cont.)

CAPITAL PROGRAMME - CHANGES DURING 2014/15

Original | Rollover | Changes | Changes | Rollover | Savings | Revised
Budget | from |(Previous)| (Current) to Budget
2014/15 | 2013114 2015/16 2014/15
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Transport & Streetscene
Sustainable Waste Management 0 0.569 0.090 0.315 0 0 0.974
Highways 3.645 0.009 0.363 0.334 (0.089) 0 4.262
Local Transport Grant 0 0 1.443 {0.017) 0 0 1.426
Transportation 1.700 0 (0.985) (0.307) 0 0 0.408
5.345 0.578 0.911 0.325 (0.089) 0.000 7.070
Organisational Change 1
Leisure Centres 0 0.029 0.015 0.006 (0.025) 0 0.025
Recreation - Other 0 0.008 0 0 (0.008) 0 0.000
Play Areas 0 0.001 0 0.361 0 0 0.362
0.000 0.038 0.015 0.367 {0.033) 0.000 0.387
Organisational Change 2
Administrative Buildings 0.955 0.301 0.025 0.134 0 0 1.415
0.955 0.301 0.025 0.134 0.000 0.000 1.415
Housing Revenue Account :
Housing Revenue Account
Major Works 6.328 0 (3.414) (0.028) 0 0 2.886
Accelerated Programmes 0.300 0 0.818 0 0 0 1.118
WHQS Improvements 4.000 0 3.399 0.103 0 0 7.502
Disabled Adaptations 1.000 0 0 0 0 0 1.000
Other Services 0.478 0 (0.478) 0 0 0 0
12.106 0.000 0.325 0.075 0.000 0.000 12.506
Totals :
Council Fund 20.970 7.734 3.217 1.790 (2.680) (0.078) 30.953
Housing Revenue Account 12.106 0.000 0.325 0.075 0.000 0.000 12.506
Grand Total 33.076 7.734 3.542 1.865 (2.680) (0.078) 43.459

Page 82




T wininQ peloaload A 19bpng = asueliep

0000 (oo1) (980°0) 0000 980°0 jelol
pajsanbal uaym pajedojje syiom Ajpjes
WO’ 03 Jo Janc)jol jsanbay - Jarojjoy]| % uyeeH juabin Joj uoisircid sjesodiod| 0 (o0l1) (980°0) 0000 980°0 aoueul aye10dio)
w3 % wy w3 w3z
1970
0 Adld abev, J(1apun) yobpng
paldinbay uonoy aouelIeA Jo asne) aouelie) | @ouelep | 9sueLiep wnpno |elol ealy awwelboid
winPnQ - §1/v 10z Butioyuo| 186png |ejided
S32¥NO0S3Y ? 31d03d
(900°0) 0 0000 9100 9100 jeloL
(900°0) 0 0000 9100 9100 nwA seay) pAmo
w3 % w3 w3y w3y
SETY,)
19 Adld abeo, faapun) yobpng
paJinbay uonoy aoueLIeA JO @sne) aoueLep | asueuep | asuelep wnyno [elol paly swweiboud

g XIAN3IddV

winiNQ - S1/v10Z Bunioyuop 3o6png [ended

S3IAILNJ3IXT 43IHD

Page 83



ﬂ wnpnQ pajosfold A yebpng = asueuep

(08c0) (ve) (s0¢°0) S86°0 €62'1 lejoL
91/G10Z 8NP MOU S3210AUI
WgOE 03 4O Jon0J|0 }s8NbaY - 1an0|10Y|  |eul - JuswesiBy asidisiug JosoIN[(08€ 0) (v2) (8og"0) G86°0 €62°L ABojouyos] uonew.ou|
w3 % w3 w3 w3
1300
NP Adid abev, f(aapun) 126png
paiinbay uonoy aouelIeA JO 3sne) aouelep | @ouelep | aosuelep uinpnQ |ejol ealy swwesboid

(juo?) 9 XIANIddV

winpnE - 51/710Z Buojyuol 3obpng |ejde)

JONVNYIA0O

Page 84



uinynQ pajoafoid A 196png = asuelep

(¥90°0) (8) (ss8°0) SYZ6 00L0L leyoL

WG00°03F JO JoA0||01 1sanbay - Janojjoy saoueueA Jouln| 0 (02) (600°0) 9€0°0 S¥0°0 dinb3 1 uIng ‘s}IOM JOUIN
‘awwelBoid 6ujjoy NS Jo} uoisiaoid
sapnjou| "ybiYy Aenp s,ueuuo) pue
|eLOWS POOAN ABUlES ‘ppauAmo) ull4
1e syJom sapnjou| “awwelbosd NIS/vVAAQ

Wz /e 03 JO JoA0)|0. }Sanbay - Jano||oy 8y} ssoJoe syiom Bujob-uo snouep| 0 (8%) (z.€0) 96£°0 8920 uolleonpd |enads
ubiy Aend
s,yeuuon pue ybiH peobiy Je sawsyos
sapnjou; -awiwelboid sjooyos Aiepuodss

wQOoZ 03 J0 Janojjol Hmm:umm - danoloy| ay) ssoJoe syiom Buiob-uo Snouep (800 (ze) (00z°0) ecy0 €290 $|00Y0S Alepuodag
splomiayig IS ‘uonoys

WZ00"03 J0 Janoj|ol «mm:vmm. - 19A0]|0Y 1e swayds uo anp juswAed uojualay| 0 (0) (z0o0'0) /¥6°9 659 UOIIBSIUIBPOIN S|00YIS
(wzl1'03) dO uojybnoig
pue (wg90'03) BIIEMO UAIG PIOW 1B SYiom
sapnou| ‘awwelBoid sjooyos Aewd

W/ Z 03 J0 48A0]|01 }58NbBY - JaA0lI0Y ay} ssoJoe syiom BuioB-uo snouep|(6L0°0)  |(S1) (zLz0) 2ss'L ves'l s1004og Arewild

(2000 0 0000 162°0 1620 |essusg) - uolednp3

w3 % w3 w3 w3
1370
1P raud abeoy, /(4apun) yebpng
paiinbay uonoy aouellep Jo asned aouellep | @ouelep | aouelep uinynQ jeyoL ealy awwelboid

(u0)) g XIaN3ddV

uInpnQ - G1/710Z Buioyiuoly 1e6png |eyded

H1NOA 8 NOILYONa3

Page 85



uJnpnQ pajosfoid A }oBpng = asuelep

0000 0 000°0 Zv9'0 Zv9'0 feyol
0 0 0 Zr90 Zv9°0 soueLLIOpa B sdiysiauped
wyg % wy wy wz
131n0
1o Adld abeo, J(aapun) }abpng
palinbay uonoy aoueleA JO asne) aoueLiep | aouelep | aoueuep wnyng |elol ealy awwesboid

(uo9) g XIANIAddV

winpnQ - G1/71.02 Buliojiuol 3obpng |ende)

AV TVIO0S

Page 86



uininQ pajasfoid A 326png = asuelep

(09s°1) v (v¥e0) 699°L €108 leyol

0 0 0 2000 2000 seJua) Ajunwwod

WG0"03 4O Jonoj|os sanbay - Janojioy| (0 (500°0) 029’1 G29'l saoe|d BIqeIA B UBIGIA
109(0.d 919)dwos
0} papasu S| JAAO||0Y "3)IS U0 mou

WyeZ' 03 10 18n0j|01 1sanbay - JaAo)|oY| aie Ing pekejop asem joafoid syuompeaas|(zoL L) (1) (yez0) 1561 8L’z uonessuabay anua) umol
'S]08UU07) AB]jong JO Me)ls ay) 0) SAe|ap

WEG0'03 J0 Janoj|0d 1sanbay - 1anojoy|  usaq aney aisy) se pajsenbal Jao)|oy |(86€°0) (1) (£50°0) LVE0 00¥'0 §j03UU0D BIYs)ulld

0 0 0 0 SeYS Sio|[eAe. L
‘puewsp uo paseq

pue Buiobuo ase sjuelib ay] "sjeis juswanoldwi/jemausy

WZG0"03F JO Jono||o1 Jsenbay - 1ano]joy Auoe4 pajgesiq psysenbai Janojjoy| 0 (1) (zso0) 6v.'¢ 108°€ J0joag ajeald

w3z % w3z w3 w3y
18300
1D Adid abey, f(4apun) y2bpng
paiinbay uonoy aouelIeA Jo asne) aoueleA | @oueBLIBA | 9oUBLIBA wnyunQ lelol ealy swweiboid

(‘u09) g XIAN3ddV

wnunQ - 51/710Z Bunoyuoy Jebpng |ejide)

ASIdYILNT ® ALINNWINOD

Page 87



_‘ wnynQ pejosloid A 196png = asuelep

(z81°0) (c€) (0v9°0) 162’k Le6°L lejoL
(ov1'0) 0 0 9.2°0 9/20 sanjenu| abejisH adeasumo]
0 0 0 ¥00°0 ¥00'0 sewayos Juesg Buuued
‘ganIwiLo)) Buluue|d GLOz aunr ayl je
paJapisuod aq 0} pa|NPayos S| SyJom ay}
Jo abe)s xau ayj Jo} uoneo|dde Buluue|d
‘abes Juswdojaaap g ubisep ayj 0} dn
paje|dwod usaq SeY YIym Sy4 PIOW sy}
0) spunj BunoaJip-aJ 0} anp paie|ap usaq
WZ/G 03 10 JoAojjod }sanbay - 1anojjoy| eaey sawsyos abeuleip pue| jo Auolep| o (15) (z25°0) S0 cLLL Buussuibug
0 0 0 €210 €210 saoag ABraug
‘pung
Aia)o abejus 8y} Aq papuny S| awayos
SIyl '91-G10¢ u! usddey o} pajoadxs
si ainypuadxa jo ¥j|ng 8y} Aejap ay) 0}
anQ ‘pajnpayads uay} Jaje| Buipels syiom
UOI}ONJISUOD U| pajnsal aaey ssadoid
wgg90 03 JO J9A0||0) }senbay - Jano|joy Buwapual / ubisep sy yum skejaa|(zv00) (65) (890°0) v0°0 GLL'o saoineg Jabuey
w3z % w3 w3 w3z
18A0
10 Asld abeoj, /(+3pun) yobpng
patinbay uoljoy aouelep Jo asne) aoueuep | eoueuep | soueuep uinpnQ [elol ealy awwelsboiyd

(u09) g XIAN3ddV

uwIinpnQ - 61/ 102 Bunojuop 196png |eyded

INJWNOUYIANT @ ONINNV1d

Page 88



uwinynQ pajaaloid A 196png = asueliep

0000 (0 (st00) §50°L 0L0°L leol
0 0 0 80v°0 80¥'0 uoyepodsues|
*ssabo.id ul Ajjuaund s| pue G102
18qo)oQ 0} #102Z 4290120 0} sjejas pouad
Buipuny sy ‘yooloid Buiddeyy jeaes)
WG10°03 JO J8A0||01 JsBNbIY - 19010y BAIOY papun) HA BY) 0} sajeRl 6L 3| 0 (1) (510°0) Lyl 9cy'l Juelo) podsuel] (€007
0 0 0 29zy 29z v skemybiH
0 0 0 1670 ¥.6°0 Juswabeuey a)sep s|qeureisns
w3z % w3 w3 wyx
1880
noAoid | ebey, | juspun) jabpng
pasinbay uonoy 9sueliEA JO asne) asuelep | aosuelsep | asueueA winuno jeyol ealy awwesboid

(o)) g XIANaddv

winynQ - 1/71.0¢ Buiopuol 196png [ejided

ANIOS13ITULS ® LHOdSNVIL

Page 89



_‘ winynQ pajosfold A jebpng = asuelep

(€€0°0) (2) (600°0) 8.€°0 /8€'0 lejol
0 0 0 7980 2920 sealy Aeld
(800°0) 0 0 0 ~ JayiQ - Uoessday
91/G102 hun pafejsp
WE00 03 JO Jon0||04 }sanbay - 19A0||0Y|  UOIIABL SSUO SpPET* J& S3I0M D1}SN0ddY [(GZ0°0) (9g) (6000 9100 G200 salue) ainsia
w3 % w3 w3 w3
18300
np Asld | abey, f(sapun) 1ebpng
paiinbay uoljoy 9suelieA JO asne) asuelep | aoueuep | aouelep uinpnO |elol ealy awwelboid

(o)) g XIaNIddv

wIinNQ - S1/102 Bulopuoly 326png [epde)

I 3DONVHO TVNOILVSINYOYO

Page 90



winynQ pajoaioid A 126png = asueliep L

0000 (z2) (81£°0) 160°1L Syl lejoL
Buiobuo syiom e||auoifia) @ sojsaqsy
"91/5102 |nun pauodisod os|e YINoA
2 UolleoNp JO Jleyaq uo syiom Ajajes a4
‘91/G102 Iun
pauodisod sjoauuo)) Aspong o) bunejes

wgL£'03 Jo Jano|(ol Jsanbay - 1ano)joy syiom suoljeldepy Anjigesiq paigesia| 0 (22 (81€°0) 1601 Syl sbulp|ing aAlessIuIpY

w3z % w3 wg w3
1380
np Aad | ebey, (19pun) yobpng
paiinbay uonoy 9oUBlIBA JO 3asne) 9sueliep | asueuep | aouelep wnpnQ |elol ealy swwesboid

(uo0d) g XIANAddVY

uwInnO - §1/¥102 Buliojiuoly 1ebpng |epde)

Z ONVHO TVNOILVSINVOYO

Page 91



winynQ pajoefoid A 12bpng = asueliep

(£00°0) (v) (z15°0) ¥66°L1 905°2Z1 leyol
0 0 6000 0 S80IAIBS J8YJ0
0 ) (ov070) 0960 000'1 suoneldepy pajgesiq
¥00°0 (1) (1200 LEV'L 205°L sjuswanoldw| SOHM
91/510¢ o Buinuuod
WZ 1503 JO Jonojjol 1senbay - Janojjoy [aie yoiym sysom Buipuny 003 ay) ul sAeleq|(1.80°0) (9¥) (z1s0) 909°0 8LL'L sawweuBoid psjess|paoy
¥20°0 ¥ Z01L°0 886'C 988'2 sydopn Jofepy
w3 % w3z w3 w3
13nQ
1D Add abev, f{19pun) 12bpng
paJinbay uoloy aosueleA jJo asned aoueuep | aoueLlep | aJuelIBA wnynQ |eyol ealy awweibold

(uo)) g XIAN3ddV

uwinynQ - G1/10¢ Buioyuop 1b6png [eyded

INNODJV ANNIATYE ONISNOH

Page 92



uinNNQO pajoalold A 3@bpng = asueleA

(8zz'2) (2) (280°¢) (X114 65’V IejoL
(c00'0) (¥) (z1s'0) 766°L1L 90s2! JUNo2oY anuaasy Buisnoy
(szz'2) (8) (545°2) 8.£'8Z £56°0€ pund |1ounoy - |ejol qng
0 (c2) (81£70) 260°L Siv'L z abueyn |euonesiuebip
(£€0°0) (2) (600°0) 8.€°0 /8£°0 1 @buey) |euonesiuebio
0 (0) (s10°0) SS0°L 0202 auoos)aalg g Modsuel |
(z81'0 (eg) (ov9°'0) 1621 LE6'L JuswuosAug @ Buluued
(095°1) (¥) (Pre0) 6992 €108 asudiauz ® Ayunwwon
0 0 0 290 Zv9°0 a1e) |elrog
(¥90°0) (8) (ss8'0) S¥YZ'6 00L°0L YinoA g uoneonp
(ose0) (ve) (g0€'0) G860 £62°L 25UBUIBA0D
0 (o01) (980°0) 0000 980°0 saoinosay g 8|doad
(9000) 0 0000 9100 9100 $,2AN23X3 JOIUD
w3 % w3 w3 w3
19A0
13D Adld abev, J(aapun) jobpng
paJinbay uonoy ajsuelIBA JO @sne) aouelep | aoueuep | asueleA wnipno |ejol ealy awweiboid

(Juoo) g XIaN3ddv

wnynQ - G1/¥10g Bunoyuop 126png jejides

AAVINANS

Page 93



Page 94



Agenda ltem 7

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: MONDAY, 13 JULY 2015

REPORT BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE

SUBJECT: MANAGEMENT OF THE WORKFORCE CHANGE
PROGRAMME

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To present the internal self-assessment of our performance in
managing our first major programme of workforce reduction against
the recommendations of the Wales Audit Office in its recent national
study of public sector practice and performance.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  Following the publication of the Council Fund Revenue Budget for
2014-15 and being mindful of the challenging budget 'gap' of £15M
plus in January 2014, the Council took the decision to introduce a
Voluntary Redundancy Scheme.

2.02 The Voluntary Redundancy (VR) Scheme was introduced in February
2014. The purpose of the Scheme was to help the Council become
more efficient, to achieve its budget targets for workforce scaling and
to provide an opportunity for employees to apply to leave the
employment of the Council thereby minimising the need for
compulsory redundancies. The aim of the Scheme was to balance
the wishes of individuals with the need to make budget savings as far
as possible and to protect a safe and capable level of resourcing for
each and every service. The scheme was open to all employees of
the Council as part of the Council's efficiency measures with the
exception of those staff employed by a School Governing Body
funded via delegated budgets.

2.03 Before launching the Voluntary Redundancy Scheme we researched
current practice across Wales and with a number of English Councils
with greater experience of managing major workforce reform
programmes.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01 The Scheme was originally open for applications between 3

Page 95



February 2014 and 10" March 2014. A total of 174 applications
were received of which 83 were approved. The summary of
applications considered by portfolio during Phase | are detailed
below:

Portfolio No of | No of | %
applications | applications | approved
considered | approved

Chief Executives 5 3 60%

Community & Enterprise 6 6 100%

Education and Youth 25 13 52%

Governance 8 6 75%

Organisational Change 1 11 7 63.63%

Organisational Change 2 16 7 43.75%

People & Resources 9 6 66.66%

Planning & Environment 13 11 84.61%

Social Services 52 14 26.92%

Streetscene and 29 10 34.48%

Transportation

Total 174 83 47.70%

Given the scale of the workforce efficiencies required, employees
were given a further opportunity to apply for VR through a second
phase.

The summary of VR Applications considered during Phase Il is
detailed below:

Portfolio No of | No of | %
applications | applications | Approved
considered | approved

Chief Executives 3 3 100%

Community and 30 5 16.66%

Enterprise

Education & Youth 13 9 7.69%

Governance 6 3 33.33%

Organisational Change 1 15 2 13.33%

Organisational Change 2 33 16 48.48%

People and Resources 10 5 50%

Planning and Environment 10 4 40%

Social Services 51 5 9.80%

Streetscene and 42 9 21.42%

Transportation

Total 213 61 28.63%

Following Phase Il it was agreed that the programme should remain
open on a rolling basis. In practical terms, this means that
employees who are not already in scope of organisational change
can make an application to leave under VR. The panel meets on a

Page 96



3.02

3.03

4.00

4.01

4.02

5.00

6.00

7.00

8.00

9.00

10.00

monthly basis to consider any applications received during the
period. Deferred or rejected applications from previous phases can
be resubmitted in situations where the reasons for deferral or
rejection have changed.

During February 2015 Wales Audit Office published its findings in
relation to its national study of public sector practice and performance
in relation to the management of early departures across welsh public
bodies. The study lists seven proposals for improvement. A summary
of the study report is attached at Appendix 1. The full report can be
accessed on W:\Early Departures_English_2015.pdf. Flintshire
undertook a voluntary self- assessment of our performance against
each. The Council either met or exceeded each of the relevant
recommendations. Our self-assessment is included at Appendix 2. We
have submitted our self-assessment to Wales Audit Office as model
practice.

An internal audit of the 2014/15 Voluntary Redundancy / Compulsory
Redundancy programme, which included a review of the Workforce
Consultation Database found that Management can take reasonable
assurance that the controls upon which the organisation relies to
manage risk are suitable designed, consistently applied and effective.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the committee is assured of local policy and practice and its
effectiveness in managing such a complex change programme.

That the committee supports the recommendation of Flintshire policy
and practice as exemplar practice to Wales Audit Office.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
None.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT
None.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
None.

EQUALITIES IMPACT
None.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS
None.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED
None.

Page 97


file:///W:/Early_Departures_English_2015.pdf

11.00

12.00

12.01

12.02

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Local policy and practice was developed in consultation with the
Trade Unions and with the involvement of the Leader, Deputy Leader
and Cabinet Member.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Wales Audit Office (WAQO), Managing Early Departures
Across Welsh Public Bodies Report.

Appendix 2 — Flintshire response to WAO Managing Early Departures
Across Welsh Public Bodies Report

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Sharon Carney
Telephone: 01352 702139
Email:Sharon.carney@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 98



Wales Audit Office - National Studies Programme
April 2015

Response to Managing Early Departures Across Welsh Public Bodies Report

The Wales Audit Office’s Managing Early Departures Across Welsh Public Bodiesreport is
welcomed. Flintshire County Council has reviewed the report and compared itself to the
recommendations. Our analysis is set out below. We have examples of good practice to
share nationally and would welcome comparing practice with other peer public bodies.

Before launching the Voluntary Redundancy Scheme we researched current practice across
Wales and with a number of English Councils with greater experience of managing major
workforce reform programmes. The revised suite of Council policies was developed
following a full and thoughtful review which involved both the Trade Unions and the Cabinet.

The application process for employees was structured to provide a consistent set of data for
consideration by the panel. The voluntary redundancy programme has been managed in
phases to allow co-ordination of decision-making in tranches. Wherever possible voluntary
redundancy opportunities have been prompted by service reviews where change and cost
reduction is being sought.

The Council pre-estimates the costs of its annual redundancy figure targets and sets aside
annual financial provision to meet those costs so that the efficiency realised by each
departure can be immediate from the accounting month of departure..

The local programme has been self-evaluated for local learning and improvement.

Listed below are the seven proposals for improvement of the Wales Audit Office along with
our detailed response.Examples of working papers are available on request for good
practice sharing.

Recommendations (R1-7) Response

R1
Public bodies should use business | The Council has met and exceeded this
cases to support all individual early | recommendation.

departures. Business cases should
identify the cost and service delivery | All applications for Voluntary Redundancy (VR)
implications of the individual leaving | require a business case with input from both the
and take account of relevant wider | immediate line manager and the accountable Chief
workforce planning. Officer. Both officers are required to first consider
whether the post can be deleted with or without the
need for service or job redesign. They are also
required to comment on the impact of deleting the
post on service delivery, team capacity, and skills
retention within the service, and any connected
impact on other services where there is a co-reliance
for service planning and delivery.

This process has been managed consistently and
robustly, and is promoted as an example of good
organisational practice.

Paée 99




R2

Working with local government, Welsh
Government should seek agreement
on some common principles to
underpin any early departure
arrangements arising from local
government mergers.

The Council supports this recommendation provided
that individual authorities can apply reasonable and
appropriate local discretion.

The principles, policy and practice adopted by the
Council is promoted as an example of good
organisational practice.

R3
We recommend that public bodies:

1. Ensure that councillors or
board members have the
opportunity to examine the
value for money of early
departure schemes through
established/governance
arrangements.

2. Ensure that councillors and/or
board members approve
higher value packages, such
as those senior management.

3. Consider using internal audit to
provide overall assurance on
overall management of overall
departures.

The Council has met and exceeded this

recommendation.

Council policy and practice was fully reviewed by
Chief Officers, Cabinet members and Trade Unions,
and readopted, with reference to comparable sector
practice, before the workforce reduction programme
was begun.

All VR applications are considered by a corporate
panel for peer challenge, impact assessment,
consistency of judgements, and reporting and
accountability. The Panel reserves the right to ask
Managers/Chief Officers to attend or provide more
information if necessary. If in doubt the Panel will
defer a decisionon any given applications. The Panel
outcomes are circulated to the full Chief Officer
Team in tranches for final comment before ‘sign off’
and before confirmation is given to applicants. (In
service areas of political sensitivity the outcomes
have also been shared with Cabinet members for
observation.) In the case of any significant
disagreement or dispute a case is escalated to the
respective Chief Officers and the Chief Executive.

The Corporate Panel consists of Chief Officers,
Human ResourcesOfficers, Trade Union
representatives and Finance Officers.

The period of payback (break-even) is available for
all applications and is duly considered in all cases.

Applications are progressed through a workflow
system on a bespoke database. This enables
Human Resources and Finance to plan and manage
employment actions and financial investments
(including pension ‘strain’) and efficiencies. Internal
Audit also have access to the database and can
undertake ‘spot checks’ or a full audit as needed.
Internal Audit were also involved in the development
of the process.

Higher level settlements would only be agreed
through structural review/changes and require formal

Page 2100




council agreement.

R4

Public bodies should ensure where
settlement agreements are used, their
records clearly identify whether a
package includes an enhancement
payment and if so, its value and the
reason for the enhancement payment.

No enhancements have been applied by the Council.
In any case where an enhancement were to beunder
consideration the case would be escalated and
require formal Council agreement.

R5

Public bodies should give due
consideration to the equality impact of
all early departure arrangements, in
particular where a public body is
running a specific scheme covering
multiple possible departures

The Council has met this recommendation.

The adopted Council policy was subject to an
equality impact assessment before it was approved.
The Corporate Panel gives due consideration to any
equalities impacts and risks in the course of its work.
The presence of Trade Union representatives is a
constructive and protective influence for ensuring
parity of treatment.

R6

Public bodies should monitor and
report as part of their internal
governance arrangements on
expected and achieved savings as a
result of early departures. This will
help inform future cost reduction
plans.

The Council has met this recommendation.

Expected and achieved aggregated departure
savings (and costs) are reported on a regular basis
both informally (to the Chief Officers Team) and
formally (to Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny in
the course of monthly budget monitoring reports).

R7

Public bodies should review their
record keeping for early departure
arrangements, so they can more
readily identify key information
including the number and costs of
early departures in a given period,
payback period information based on
salary and employers’ National
Insurance and pension costs, and
settlement agreements.

The Council has met this recommendation as in R1,
R3 and R4 above.

Page 101




This page is intentionally left blank



Summary report




Summary

Public sector organisations have faced continued financial pressure and the
requirement to make significant cost savings following the 2010 and 2013 UK
Government spending reviews. Between 2010-11 and 2015-16, the Welsh
Government's budget allocated by the UK Govemment reduced by £1.7 billion in
real terms’.

For most public services, their main controllable cost is their wage bill. As a

result, public services have inevitably had to consider ways of cutting staff costs
to contribute to wider financial savings targets, whether by reducing pay and/or
reducing the number of employees or their working hours. One means of reducing
staff numbers is to promote ‘early departure’ by providing a financial incentive or
‘exit package’ for employees to exit the organisation, with the expectation that the
employing organisation would then realise a longer-term saving.

The Auditor General's Picture of Public Services 20117 report noted that public-
sector wage and recruitment freezes and early departures would help bridge the
financial gap facing public services in Wales, but that effective workforce planning
and communication were needed to manage related risks. Those risks include the
potential for skills gaps arising from these schemes — which may then need filling at
additional cost — and the general impact on service delivery. The report also noted
that there are significant up-front costs involved in such approaches and that it can
take time for the savings to outweigh the initial costs.

In practice, early departures go by a variety of names. This report uses the terms
voluntary exit, voluntary redundancy, compulsory redundancy and early retirement
to refer to the four main types of early departures (Box 1). However, organisations
may use their own terms to describe these four types of departure. Voluntary exit
generally offers more favourable terms than voluntary redundancy, which in turn
would offer more favourable terms than compulsory redundancy.

Box 1 — Types of early departures

Voluntary exit: Voluntary exit can be offered in the interests of workforce efficiency and where
employers wish to reduce staff numbers, or to support organisational changes. There is no
compulsion on individuals to accept the offer. Public bodies have greatest flexibility in the
arrangements and payments offered. This is sometimes referred to as voluntary early release.

Voluntary redundancy: Voluntary redundancy is offered to staff at risk of redundancy, with
formal consultation through trade unions. There is no compulsion on individuals to apply,
however, they may be made compulsorily redundant at a later stage. This is sometimes
referred to as voluntary severance or flexible severance.

Compulsory redundancy: Individuals may be selected for compulsory redundancy following
an offer of voluntary redundancy. The payment terms are typically the least favourable.

Early retirement: Individuals may be able to retire before the standard age and receive a
lump sum payment and/or enhancements on their pension.

Source: Wales Audit Office and Civil Service Compensation Scheme Guidance

1 Whtten Statement — The UK Government s Spending Round of 26 June 2013, Weish Government, June 2013
Accessed at hitp //wales.gov.uk/about/cabinet/cabinetstatements/2013/spendinground2013/?lang=en
2 APicture of Public Services 2011, Wales Audit Office, October 2011

Managing early departures across Weish public bodies

Page 104



The UK Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) introduced new

financial accounts disclosures on all early departure ‘exit packages’ from 2010-11,
applicable to the Welsh Government and its sponsored bodies. These require the
disclosure of the number of early departure packages by cost band and total cost
in each financial year. The 2010-11 CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting” also adopted this requirement and the Welsh Government
has incorporated this requirement in its accounting guidance for Welsh NHS bodies
from 2010-11.

In May 2012, the Welsh Government published Working Together for Wales —

A Slrategic Framework for the Public Service Workforce in Wales. The strategy
outlines how the workforce is at the heart of enabling the Welsh Government's
future vision for public services and set out the principles by which the Welsh
Government will operate in relation to workforce matters. The two main priorities
set out in the strategic framework are ‘building an engaged, motivated and high
performing workforce' and ‘attracting and retaining talent'. Well managed, early
departures could support these objectives.

Recently, the National Audit Office* and Audit Scotland® have reported on

early departure arrangements across UK central government and the Scottish
public sector respectively. The National Audit Office has also reported on such
arrangements for senior BBC executives®. House of Commons Public Accounts
Commitiee and Scottish Parliament Public Audit Committee reports have reinforced
the findings of the NAO and Audit Scotland. These reports have pointed variously
to weaknesses and inconsistencies in the management of early departures.

In Wales, there has been negative publicity about early departures at a number of
public bodies. In 2011, a report by the National Assembly's Finance Committee’
on the Welsh Government's staff numbers and costs criticised the Welsh
Government's early departure arrangements. The report concluded there was

little evidence that Welsh Government departments gave adequate consideration
around early departures to ensure that no department was unduly affected by staff
reduction.

There has also been recent negative publicity around the use of settlement
agreements® and ‘gagging clauses’ within early departure arrangements.

A 2013 National Audit Office report found a lack of transparency, consistency
and accountability in the use of settlement agreements in the public sector and
little is being done to change this®.

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Local Authonty (Scotland) Accounts Advisory Committee
(LASAAC).

Managing early departures in central government, National Audit Office, March 2012

Managing early departures from the Scottish public sector, Audit Scotland, May 2013, Scotland s public sector workforce, Audit Scotland,
November 2013

Severance payments and wider benefits for senior BBC managers, National Audit Office, June 2013

Inquiry into Welsh Assembly Government staff numbers and costs, National Assembly for Wales Finance Committee, March 2011
Settlement agreements were previously known as compromise agreements until Section 23 of the Enterprise and Reguiatory Reform Act
came into force on 29 July 2013.

Confidentiality clauses and special severance payments, National Audit Office, June 2013

Managing early departures across Welsh public bodies

Page 105



On behalf of the Auditor General for Wales, a team from the Wales Audit Office
examined whether Welsh public bodies can demonstrate that they are securing value
for money from the use of early departures to control or reduce workforce costs.
Between February and June 2014. we surveyed 58 Welsh public bodies audited

by the Auditor General including Welsh Government, local government, the NHS,
national park authorities, police, fire and rescue authonties and ‘other public bodies’.
Our survey sought information on the use of early departures and the wider approach
that these bodies had taken to reduce or control workforce costs over recent years.
We also requested data about all individual early departure packages agreed between
1 April 2010 and 31 December 2013. Full details of our methods are at Appendix 1

This report presents a high-level review based largely on the findings of that survey
but supplemented where relevant with other evidence arising from our regular audit
work. We have not examined the regularity or propriety of individual early departure
packages as part of the work undertaken to produce this report. There have, however,
been some isolated but widely reported examples where auditors have reviewed
arrangements for certain individual departure packages for senior officers.

We found that Welsh public bodies have made extensive use of early departures
to support workforce cost reduction, alongside a range of other approaches.
Between April 2010 and December 2013, 10,658 staff left employment through
early departure at a cost of around £254 million (Figure 1). Figures reported in
public bodies’ end of year accounts for 2013-14 suggest that, when compared
with data reported to us for the period to the end of December 2013, there were
around 2,300 more early departures in the final quarter of 2013-14.

Assuming staff were not directly or indirectly replaced, public bodies would
start making cost savings from early departures after 10 months. Once the
payback period has elapsed, public bodies can start making a net saving on
the salary, national insurance contributions and pension contributions that
would otherwise have been paid to departing staff. Based on our survey data,
these potential savings amount to around £305 million per year, although public
bodies might not realise these savings in full for a variety of reasons. While

the exact contribution of early departures is unclear, staff salary costs across
Welsh public bodies reduced by around £447 million in real terms between
2009-10 and 2013-14.

Overall, the governance of early departures appears to have been satisfactory,
although not all schemes complied fully with good practice principles. For
example, while Welsh public bodies have been largely mindful of the impact
of early departures from a workforce planning perspective, some have applied
more rigorous business case criteria than others.

Managing early departures across Welsh public bodies

Page 106



Figure 1 — Early departures by sector, April 2010 to December 2013

Local
authorities
and national Welsh Police and

park authorities NHS bodies Government fire and rescue
Workforce: 165,900 Worltforce: 88,100 Woridorce: 6,400 Workforce: 22,000
Number of departures: Number of departures: Number of departures:

7,683 1,223 514

v v v v

B I "

4.6% 1.4% 2.3%
Proportion of workforce Proportion of workforce Proportion of workforce
Cost Cost

£144.3m

B ©- 2500 B ©25.001-£50000 Bl £50.001 - £75000 £75001 - £100.00M0
Total
Number of departures  Percentage of workforce Cost

10,658 3.7% £253.7m

Source: Wales Audit Office survey of 58 Welsh public bodies

10 Managing early departures across Welsh pubiic bodies

Page 107

‘Other
public bodies’

Warkiorce: 3,300

Numnber of depart res: Numnber of departures:

261

v

W
7.9%

Proportion of workdorce Proportion of workdorce

Cost

£12.5m £11.5m

£43 947

Crer £100,000

Average cost

£23,805



Recommendation

We found that not all public bodies were using business cases for all individual
early departures and that where public bodies are using business cases, some are
applying more rigorous criteria than others (paragraphs 2.18-2.20).

R1 Public bodies should use business cases to support all individual early
departures. Business cases should identify the cost and service delivery
implications of the individual leaving and take account of relevant wider
workforce planning.

For voluntary exits and voluntary redundancies, local authonties have discretion to
set their own early departure arrangements and, in practice, have applied a range

of different terms and conditions (paragraph 1.13). Given the Welsh Government's
desired reduction in the number of local authorities in Wales, early departures are

likely to be a feature of any future merger agreements.

R2 Working with local government, the Welsh Government should seek
agreement on some common principles to underpin any early departure
arrangements arising from local government mergers.

Scrutiny of early departures is important in ensuring that proposals for both schemes
and individual early departures represent value for money. We found that more than
three quarters of public bodies had councillors or board members involved in some
way in ensuring value for money for their early departures (paragraphs 2.25-2.26).

R3 We recommend that public bodies:

* Ensure that councillors or board members have the opportunity to
examine the value for money of early departure schemes through
established scrutiny/governance arrangements.

» Ensure that councillors and/or board members approve higher value
packages, such as those for senior management.

« Consider using internal audit to provide assurance on overall
management of early departure schemes.

We found that around one in five early departures have involved some form of
settlement agreement, with seven per cent of these cases including an enhancement
payment. However, not all public bodies could tell us whether their early departures
involved a settlement agreement or an enhancement payment (paragraphs
2.29-2.32).

R4 Public bodies should ensure where settlement agreements are used, their
records clearly identify whether a package includes an enhancement
payment and if so, its value and the reason for the enhancement payment.

Managing early departures across Welsh public bodies

Page 108

1



Recommendation

We found that not all public bodies that ran an early departure scheme undertook
some form of equality impact assessment. Equality impact assessments should
ensure that those with protected characteristics are not subjected to unfair
disadvantage or exclusion (paragraphs 2.27-2.28).

R5 Public bodies should give due consideration to the equality impact of all
early departure arrangements, in particular where a public body is running
a specific scheme covering multiple possible departures.

We found that, assuming staff were not directly or indirectly replaced, public bodies
would, on average, start to have made cost savings from early departures after 10
months. We found that once this payback period elapsed, public bodies stood to save
around £305 million per year. However, public bodies might not realise any of these
savings in full for a variety of reasons (paragraphs 1.18-1.23).

R6 Public bodies should monitor and report as part of their internal
governance arrangements on expected and achieved savings as a result
of early departures. This will help inform future cost reduction plans.

We found the quality of data held by public bodies on early departures was
inconsistent. Several public bodies were not able to provide us with some key
information we requested (paragraph 2.37).

R7 Public bodies should review their record keeping for early departure
arrangements, so that they can more readily identify key information
including the number and costs of early departures in a given period,
payback period information based on salary and employers’ National
Insurance and pension costs, and settlement agreements.

12 Managing early departures across Welsh public bodies

Page 109



Page 110



Agenda ltem 8

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: MONDAY 13™ JULY, 2015

REPORT BY: MEMBER ENGAGEMENT MANAGER

SUBJECT: FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To consider the Forward Work Programme of the Corporate Resources
Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 TItems feed into a Committee’s Forward Work Programme from a number of
sources. Members can suggest topics for review by Overview & Scrutiny
Committees, members of the public can suggest topics, items can be referred by
the Cabinet for consultation purposes, or by County Council or Chief Officers.
Other possible items are identified from the Cabinet Work Programme and the
Strategic Assessment of Risks & Challenges.

2.02 In identifying topics for future consideration, it is useful for a ‘test of
significance’ to be applied. This can be achieved by asking a range of questions

as follows:

1. Will the review contribute to the Council’s priorities and/or objectives?
2. Are there issues of weak or poor performance?

3. How, where and why were the issues identified?

4. Do local communities think the issues are important and is there any

evidence of this? Is there evidence of public dissatisfaction?
Is there new Government guidance or legislation?

Have inspections been carried out?

7. Is this area already the subject of an ongoing review?

SN

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  Overview & Scrutiny presents a unique opportunity for Members to determine
the Forward Work Programme of the Committees of which they are Members.
By reviewing and prioritising the Forward Work Programme Members are able to
ensure it is Member-led and includes the right issues. A copy of the Forward
Work Programme is attached at Appendix 1 for Members’ consideration which
has been updated following the last meeting.

4.00 RECOMMENDATIONS

Page 111



4.01  That the Committee considers the draft Forward Work Programme attached as
Appendix 1 and approve/amend as necessary.

5.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.01 None as a result of this report.

6.00 ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

6.01  None as a result of this report.

7.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

7.01  None as a result of this report.

8.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT

8.01  None as a result of this report.

9.00 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

9.01 None as a result of this report.

10.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED

10.01 N/A.

11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

11.01 Publication of this report constitutes consultation.

12.00 APPENDICES

12.01 Appendix 1 — Forward Work Programme

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
None.

Contact Officer: Robert Robins
Telephone: 01352 702320
Email: Robert.robins@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 112


mailto:Robert.robins@flintshire.gov.uk

Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Indicative Forward Work Programme 2015/16

Workforce Information Q 1 and 2

Forward Work Programme

Information and monitoring

Approval and development

DATE SUBJECT O&S Focus REPORT FROM
Thursday 10t LSB and Strategic Partnerships Performance - End | Monitoring Karen Armstrong
September of year report
10.00

Revenue Budget Monitoring (Month 3 )
Sara Dulson
Elections and Individual Electoral registration Monitoring
Gareth Owens
Forward Work Programme Monitoring and assurance
Robert Robins
Approval and development
Thursday 8t Police & Crime Commissioner: consultation on the Consultation Robert Robins
=0 October Crime & Policing Plan for 2016/17
g 10.00
[ Revenue Budget Monitoring (Month 4 ) Monitoring Sara Dulson
—
a; Capital programme Budget monitoring (Month 4) Monitoring Liz Thomas

Sharon Carney

Robert Robins

Thursday 12t
November 10.00

Revenue Budget Monitoring (Month 5 )

Forward Work Programme

Monitoring

Approval and development

Sara Dulson

Robert Robins




Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Indicative Forward Work Programme 2015/16

v11 ebed

Thursday 10t Revenue Budget Monitoring (Month ) Monitoring Sara Dulson
December
Items to be Health and Well-being update Information Helen Stappleton
scheduled

Customer services and Call-handling update
R




Agenda ltem 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

By virtue of paragraph(s) 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 143



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 147



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 151



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Medium Term Financial Strategy
	Enc. 1 for Medium Term Financial Strategy

	5 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2015/16
	Enc. 1 for REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2015/16

	6 REVENUE  AND CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING 2014/15 (OUTTURN)
	Enc. 1 for REVENUE  AND CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING 2014/15 (OUTTURN)
	Enc. 2 for REVENUE  AND CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING 2014/15 (OUTTURN)

	7 Management of the Workforce Change Programme
	Enc. 1 for Management of the Workforce Change Programme
	Appendix 1 - Wales Audit Office (WAO), Managing Early Departures Across Welsh Public Bodies Report

	8 Forward Work Programme
	Appendix 1 - Forward Work Programme

	9 Single Status Closure Report
	Enc. 1 for Single Status Closure Report

	10 Restructure of ICT Service
	Enc. 1 for Restructure of ICT Service
	Enc. 2 for Restructure of ICT Service


